
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, August 21, 2023 

In-Person, Council Chambers 

 

ATTEND IN PERSON – The Council Chambers is open to the public with normal or standard 

occupancy levels.  

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 

   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 

   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/xlVAEbvLyBM. Recordings can be viewed on   

   CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 

   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please contact the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov  

   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, August 21, 2023, to receive the Zoom Link  

 to the meeting. 

 
I. COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING – CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS  

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session.  No council 

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

B) Trivia Question – Council Member Bernier  

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

A) Climate Action Plan/ Environmental Advisory Board Discussion – 20 minutes 

B) Baseball Field Grant Balance – Use of remaining Funds – 10 minutes  

C) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) draft for the Stage at Talleyrand – 10 minutes  

D) Emergency Housing for Homeless on ground level of Central Business District – 15 minutes 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is 

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

https://youtube.com/live/xlVAEbvLyBM
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


Memo 
To: Council 

From: Alyssa Doherty 

cc: Name 

Date: August 18, 2023 

Re: Bellefonte Borough Climate Action Plan 

To prepare for the upcoming Council Meeting on Monday, August 18, 2023 please review the 
Climate Action Plan (CAP) for Bellefonte Borough. 

To view the Bellefonte Borough Climate Action Plan please visit the Borough Website at 
www.bellefonte.net.  

The direct link to the CAP is https://bellefonte.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Bellefonte-CAP-
Final.pdf  

http://www.bellefonte.net/
https://bellefonte.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Bellefonte-CAP-Final.pdf
https://bellefonte.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/Bellefonte-CAP-Final.pdf




















































   
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Business Meeting  

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Monday, August 21st, 2023 

In-Person, Council Chambers  
 

ATTEND IN PERSON – The Council Chambers is open to the public with normal or standard 

occupancy levels.  

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 

   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 

   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/xlVAEbvLyBM. Recordings can be viewed on   

   CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 

   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please contact the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov  

   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, August 21st, 2023, to receive the Zoom 

Link to the meeting. 
 

I. 7:30 PM COUNCIL MEETING – CALL TO ORDER 

Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council meeting. We will do our best to start council meetings on 

time and end them on time. Due to the room acoustics, please speak up when talking so that people can hear what 

you are saying. All comments and reports should be kept to three minutes maximum. Thank you. 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE and MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

III.   ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, Vice-President, North Ward  Ms. McKean, West Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Dann, Pro Tempore, South Ward   Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Mr. Johnson, President, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may take official action on it with 

the following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may 

add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action 

item is being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The officers of council have decided to try combining agenda and non-agenda public comment. This Public 

Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or any 

comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come to the 

podium at the appropriate time, state your name and address and which item you are speaking about. Please 

try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

 
 

https://youtube.com/live/xlVAEbvLyBM
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


 

2 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority July & August Municipal Report 2023. FYI, no Council action is 

needed. 

West Penn Power Community Tree Program. FYI, no Council action is needed. 

Request for “No Trucks” signage on W. Bishop Street near Dollar General due to issues with trucks turning around. 

Council may schedule a discussion or consider action. 

Resident Comments about the Bellefonte Borough Climate Action Plan. FYI, no Council action is needed. 

Spring Creek Watershed Commission 2024 Budget and Meeting Dates. A budget increase is being requested.  Council 

will consider this during the 2024 budget work.  No Council action is requested at this time. 

West Penn Power Response to Nathanial & Maria Day’s request to partially vacate Lamb Street. FYI, no Council action 

is needed. 

Request for donation to support Harrisburg Poet’s workshops for Bellefonte Youth. Council may consider action. 

Safe Routes to Parks Bellefonte  Borough Update. FYI, no Council action is needed. 

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARING – Request to Vacate Portion of West Lamb Street Right-of-Way  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There 

will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for 

separate action. Call for a Motion/ 2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.   

General  Council Meeting Minutes July 5, 2023 

Finance Budget V. Actual July 2023 

Finance Budget V. Actual Summary July 2023 

Finance Stover McGlaughlin Invoice July 2023 

Finance Treasurer’s Report July 2023 

Finance Voucher Summary July 2023 

 

IX. REPORTS 
Elected Official and Staff Reports 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ Proclamation- Bellefonte Boys’ Baseball Team 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Police- 

➢ July 2023 Report 

➢ Parking Enforcement and Animal Control July 2023 Report 

Chief Weaver Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)  

 

Motion/2nd to approve the following HARB projects.  

➢ 384 E. Linn Street – exterior window and door replacement.  

➢ 435 N. Spring Street - Add an L-shaped porch to cover the front of the 

entrance.  

➢ 469 E. Curtin Street – Replace existing windows with new wooden 

windows (same style/grid patterns), paint all trim work and doors, add 

gutters and downspouts, and replace accent roof(s).  

➢ 469 E. Curtin Street - Add a free-standing deck to the rear of the home  

More details about each project can be found in your council packet 

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Nuisance Codes   Mr. Cabibbo Submitted 

  Borough Manager   Mr. Stewart  Submitted 



 

3 
 

  Assistant Borough Manager    Mr. Holderman  Submitted 

 

Liaison Reports 

Reports are to be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include 

draft meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding 

the report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be 

stated on the council meeting agenda 

ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/performance center project committee Mr. Holderman   

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Holderman  

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services  Mr. Rhoat  Submitted 

Bellefonte Environmental Advisory Review Board  Mr. Holderman Submitted 

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Mr. Holderman   

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Stewart   

Centre County Boroughs Association  Ms. Dann   

Centre County Government  Mr. Stewart   

CNET Board of Directors- Cindy Hahn Mr. Holderman   

Downtown Bellefonte Inc. (DBI) Ms. Thompson  

Governor’s Park  Mr. Holderman  

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Holderman  

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Holderman   

Shade Tree Commission Mr. Holderman  

Union Cemetery Association  Mr. Holderman   

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson  

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

Centre County Airport Authority – No meeting in July  Mr. D. Johnson   

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill  

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission  Mr. D. Johnson   

Spring Creek Watershed Commission  Mr. Brachbill   

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board  Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Talleyrand Park Committee  Ms. Dann    

Workplace Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO)  Mr. D. Johnson   

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS BY CENTRE COUNTY BOROUGHS 

ASSOCIATION  

LIAISON REPORT 

PA State Association of Boroughs (PSAB) Board of Directors  Mr. Brachbill   

PSAB Resolutions Committee Ms. Dann  
 

XL. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

Climate Action Plan (CAP) and Environmental Advisory Board (EAB). Motion/2nd to suspend all Borough-related 

activity on the Climate Action Plan/ Environmental Advisory Board.  

Memo from Finance Director: Budget V. Actual Summary June 2023. Motion/2nd to approve at Budget V. Actual 

Summary June 2023.  

Coalition Against Bigger Trucks Request for Letter of Support.  Council may consider taking action on the request.  



 

4 
 

DBI /Under the Lights Special Event Request to use South Lot. The streetscape project scheduled for South Spring Street 

will be underway during the requested date.  Staff is recommending that the event organizers find an alternative location.   

Bellefonte Rental Code Update/CR Code Amendments Update. Following council’s action on the proposed ordinance 

amendments at the 8/7 meeting, Centre Region Code has stated that no further action by council needs to take place.  

Bellefonte will operate under the previously approved Ordinance of 2017.  FYI, no Council action is needed. 

Bellefonte Borough Special Events Calendar: August-October 2023. FYI, no Council action is needed. 

Request to amend Commercial Business District Zoning to allow ground-floor residential for Emergency 

shelter/homeless housing.  The zoning amendment process involves public notices, hearings, legal advertising, and the 

crafting of the amendment language.  The requester of this amendment has asked that council signify their willingness to 

consider an amendment as described.  Council may consider action.  

South Spring Street Streetscape Bids Review. The low bidder did not have a complete bid package submission.  Staff is 

recommending that, based on the solicitor's opinion, the borough accept the next lowest bid.  Motion/2nd to approve the 

CDBG Spring Street Streetscape Bid – John Nastase Construction for $ 194,981.74. 

Nastase Construction Final Invoice for Governor’s Park Baseball Field. Motion and 2nd to approve Nastase 

Construction Final Invoice on the condition of the Architects' review and approval in the amount of $64,386.60. 
 

XLI. NEW BUSINESS 

Penn State University Sustainability Project - Water Bottling Study Updates. Motion/2nd to approve the Water Bottling 

Study Update for Bellefonte’s sustainability project. 
 

XLII.  COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

 

XLIII.   ADJOURNMENT 

The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM  
 

 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2023 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda. 



Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipal Report | July 2023 

253 TRANSFER ROAD        PHONE  814-238-7005 
BELLEFONTE, PA  16823                                   RECYCLING  814-238-6649  
ccrra@centrecountyrecycles.org                                  FAX: 814-238-3195     
www.centrecountyrecycles.org                    TOLL FREE  1-800-605-6649 
 

 

 

 

 

Your Monthly Municipal Report 

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority 

JULY 2023 

THE STATE OF OUR AUTHORITY 

Katrina Pope, Office Manager 

● Curbside recycling is now available in areas of Marion Township, Walker Township, 

Howard Township, and Howard Borough for $9 per month.  Interested residents should 

contact CCRRA at 814-238-7005. 

● Event season is in full swing and the CCRRA staff has been working to add recycling 

containers at many of our local fairs and festivals this summer.  We have provided 

containers for recycling at the following events: 

○ Bellefonte Borough’s event season 

○ Nittany Antique Machinery spring event 

○ Philipsburg Borough Heritage Days 

○ People’s Choice Festival 

○ ArtsFest/ZeroFest 

○ AAUW Book Sale 

○ Millheim Festival 

● CCRRA is partnering with Jabebo to provide recycling education on July 12th for the 

Children’s Day at ArtsFest.   

● June has continued to be a busy month with 2023 municipal waste tonnages remaining 

higher than 2022 amounts.  Several larger construction projects have kept our transfer 

staff busy. 

● Although recycling markets took a slight dip in June, our crews continue to produce a 

high quality product that has value for manufacturers, many of which are in 

Pennsylvania.  CCRRA marketed over 5,000 tons of recyclables through the end of June. 

● CCRRA and Keep Centre County Beautiful became corporate sponsors of the Snow Shoe 

Rails to Trails.  The volunteers from the club have worked hard to collect 286 bags of 

trash this year along the trail and public roads.   

http://www.centrecountyrecycles.com/


Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipal Report | July 2023 

● Our enforcement team continues to work hard to battle litter and illegal dumping 

throughout our county.  Their collective efforts have collected 8,309 pounds of trash and 

138 tires through the end of June. 

● The Art Alliance of Central Pennsylvania has filled the display cases in our Interpretive 

Center with recycled art from their show this past April.  Anyone can come by and see 

the selected pieces on display from the Recycled Art Show.  Just stop in the main office 

to pick up a key for the Interpretive Center building.  

● The Centre Region COG is piloting a food scrap collection program through October.  

Food scrap drop-off sites are located in Benner, College, Ferguson, Harris and College 

Townships.  All residents of Centre County are invited to register and participate in this 

no-cost pilot.  CCRRA staff is helping to promote the program and monitor the collection 

sites. Details can be found at https://www.crcog.net/refuse.   

● The drop off boxes that many of you have at your municipal offices continue to be 

heavily used.  As of the end of June we have pulled 80 roll-off boxes 1,542 times.   

● We do get complaints about boxes not being emptied frequently enough – please try and 

monitor these drop offs for us, and let us know if they need serviced.  In addition, any 

help you can offer by keeping them free of waste and easily accessible is much 

appreciated. 

● CCRRA staff assisted with Round 61 the latest DEP Section 902 Recycling grants to 

support their leaf and yard waste programs.  Two municipalities were awarded grants. 

○ Patton Township - $350,000 

○ Benner Township - $271,011 

● Applications are due for the Alternative Fuel Incentive Grant Program on August 25, 

2023 and December 15, 2023.  Please contact our office if you need assistance with the 

application.   Grant details can be found at 

https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-

Grant/Pages/default.aspx 

● The Clean Energy fueling station located on Transfer Road offers renewable natural gas a 

cleaner, low-carbon fuel for your fleet. The current price has recently dropped to 

$3.19/GGE.   

● We are available to attend your meetings, at your request.   

● Upcoming holiday closure notice:  The transfer station and our offices will be 

closed on Monday, September 4th for Labor Day. 

https://www.crcog.net/refuse
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx


Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipal Report 

253 TRANSFER ROAD        PHONE  814-238-7005 
BELLEFONTE, PA  16823                                   RECYCLING  814-238-6649  
ccrra@centrecountyrecycles.org                                  FAX: 814-238-3195     
www.centrecountyrecycles.org                    TOLL FREE  1-800-605-6649 
 

 

 

 

 

Your Monthly Municipal Report 
Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority 

August 2023 
 

THE STATE OF OUR AUTHORITY 

Amy Schirf, Education Coordinator 

● Curbside recycling is now available in the areas of Marion Township, Walker Township, Howard Township, 

and Howard Borough for $9 per month.  Interested residents should contact CCRRA at 814-238-7005. 

● Event season is in full swing and the CCRRA staff has been working to add recycling containers at many of 

our local fairs and festivals this summer.  We have provided containers for recycling at the following events 

and have added tonnages collected at the events that we have the information for: 

○ Bellefonte Borough’s event season 

○ Nittany Antique Machinery spring event 

○ Philipsburg Borough Heritage Days: 160 lbs of paper, metal and cardboard 

○ People’s Choice Festival: 490 lbs of paper, metal and cardboard 

○ ArtsFest/ZeroFest: 1,280 lbs of plastic and metal.  750 lbs of organics 

○ AAUW Book Sale 

○ Millheim Festival 

● July has continued to be a busy month with 2023 municipal waste tonnages remaining higher than 2022 

amounts.  This July our Transfer Station crew processed close to 9,600 tons of refuse. 

● CCRRA saw 845 tons of inbound recycling come through the scales in July.  Our crews continue to produce 

a high quality product that has value for manufacturers, many of which are in Pennsylvania.   

● CCRRA and Keep Centre County Beautiful became corporate sponsors of the Snow Shoe Rails to Trails.  The 

volunteers from the club have worked hard to collect 286 bags of trash this year along the trail and public 

roads.   

● Our enforcement team continues to work hard to battle litter and illegal dumping throughout our county.  

Their collective efforts have collected 12,069 pounds of trash and 149 tires through the end of July. 

● Free Tire Collection event Saturday, September 16th from 8am to 2 pm for all Centre County residents (no 

businesses). 12 light duty tires per person. Registration is required for this event.  Register at 

www.centrecountyrecycles.org.   

http://www.centrecountyrecycles.com/
http://www.centrecountyrecycles.org/


Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipal Report 

● The Centre Region COG’s food scrap collection pilot program has reached over 500 participants.  The 

program will continue through October.  All residents of Centre County are invited to register and 

participate in this no-cost pilot.  CCRRA staff is helping to promote the program and monitor the collection 

sites. Details can be found at https://www.crcog.net/refuse.   

● The drop off boxes that many of you have at your municipal offices continue to be heavily used.  As of the 

end of July we have pulled 80 roll-off boxes 1,792 times.   

● We do get complaints about boxes not being emptied frequently enough – please try and monitor these 

drop offs for us, and let us know if they need serviced.  In addition, any help you can offer by keeping them 

free of waste and easily accessible is much appreciated. 

● Applications are due for the Alternative Fuel Incentive Grant Program on August 25, 2023 and December 

15, 2023.  Please contact our office if you need assistance with the application.   Grant details can be found 

at https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-

Grant/Pages/default.aspx.  

● PA DEP has announced the Municipal Electric Vehicle (EV) Education program. Topics include how EVs 

impact municipalities, as well as EV adoption, charging, and associated planning and policymaking.  Please 

see the attached flyer.  You can contact Joshua Dziubek, DEP Energy Program Specialist, at RA-

AFIG@pa.gov for more details. 

● The Clean Energy fueling station located on Transfer Road offers renewable natural gas a cleaner, low-

carbon fuel for your fleet. The current price has recently dropped to $3.19/GGE.   

● We are available to attend your meetings, at your request.   

● Upcoming holiday closure notice:  The transfer station and our offices will be closed on Monday, 

September 4th for Labor Day.  Collection delays may occur as a result of the holiday.  Please check the 

Authority’s website and Facebook page for the holiday collection schedule.   

● The transfer station routinely opens one hour early at 7am the day after a holiday when the holiday occurs 

on a weekday for those who may need earlier access for disposal. 

● Early collection (6am) ENDS on Tuesday, September 5 and collection crews will be back to their normal 

7am start time. 

https://www.crcog.net/refuse
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx


  
 

Municipal Electric Vehicle Education 
Program  

In-Person Workshops:  
Wednesday, August 23 |10am-noon 
Community College of Allegheny County 
West Hills Center - Oakdale, PA 
Wednesday, August 30 |10am-noon 
DEP South Central Regional Office – 
Harrisburg, PA 
Wednesday, September 13 |10am-noon 
Southeast PA – Location TBD 
 
Register: For the in-person workshops, 
please complete this registration form no later than 48 hours in advance of your intended 
workshop.  You will receive a confirmation email once your registration has been accepted. 
 
Virtual Sessions:  
Tuesday, August 29 |10am-noon Register 
Wednesday, September 20 |2-4pm Register 
Thursday, October 12 |10am-noon Register 
 

Are you interested in how electric vehicles impact your municipality and electric vehicle 

adoption?  If so, join us for these in-person and virtual education sessions! 

➢ Get educated on the basics of electric vehicles, charging, as well as associated planning 

and policymaking. 

➢ Learn about electric vehicle incentives and methods for municipalities to support 

electric vehicle adoption. 

These FREE education sessions are open to any municipality interested in learning about 

electric vehicles.   

 

 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Y2ZGZ6S
https://events.teams.microsoft.com/event/ab639c95-2620-4326-a574-0d6bbc63930e@15401b0d-784f-4aa1-a345-7363c28cff3e
https://events.teams.microsoft.com/event/86a526f5-ee72-4b64-bb2b-4123ffe728f5@15401b0d-784f-4aa1-a345-7363c28cff3e
https://events.teams.microsoft.com/event/657b4926-c2e9-452e-ac51-cceda4138576@15401b0d-784f-4aa1-a345-7363c28cff3e


FirstEnergy
Community Tree Program

As part of FirstEnergy’s commitment to building a more 
sustainable future, we are offering free tree-planting 
opportunities for communities and non-profit organizations 
throughout our service territory. From tree selection to planting 
and clean-up, our Green Team employee volunteers will help 
promote responsible use of natural resources and advance 
sustainable practices in your community.

Program Highlights
• Materials for plantings and giveaways, including tree 

saplings, are provided at no cost from FirstEnergy.

• Our Green Team volunteers will plant trees in public areas, 
such as state and local parks.

• Additional complementary volunteer services, such as trail 
maintenance and park cleanup, are available.

Program Logistics

• Trees supplied are normally of bareroot variety or small pots.
Our tree specialists can assist with tree selection and planting
recommendations.

• If a non-profit organization chooses to supply its own trees,
FirstEnergy will cover the cost of up to $10 per tree.

• Participating organizations agree that trees will not be planted
in an area that could conflict with overhead utility lines.

• Prior to the planting event, organizations should mark where
individual trees are to be planted using flags, spray paint
or other means. Please call your local One Call organization
at 8-1-1 at least three days in advance to have underground
utility lines marked.

• Participating organizations are expected to direct and
supervise volunteers.

To be considered for participation in the tree planting 
program, complete the attached questionnaire and submit it 
to your local FirstEnergy External Affairs consultant. 
Completed documents can also be emailed to 
GreenTeam@firstenergycorp.com. 

Together, we can make a difference in our communities. 



Organization Name

501c(3) tax ID (If applicable)

Address of Organization

Contact name

Email

Phone number

Requested Date of Event 

Location of volunteer event 

Number of saplings requested

Requested tree species

Is the site accessible by vehicle?

Required mark outs will be completed by

Are trees for planting, giveaway or both?

Are protective sleeves and stakes needed?

Number of FirstEnergy volunteers requested

Will the organization also have volunteers? If so, how many?

Will equipment be supplied (shovels, etc.) for FirstEnergy volunteers?

FirstEnergy Community Tree Program Questionaire

COMMXXXX-11-22-CV
Produced by FirstEnergy’s Communications and Branding Department



 

 
1 3 5  S o u t h  S p r i n g  S t r e e t  B e l l e f o n t e  P e n n s y l v a n i a  1 6 8 2 3  

 

      August 14, 2023 

 

Ralph Stewart 

Borough Manager 

Bellefonte Borough 

236 W Lamb St 

Bellefonte, PA 16823 

 

RE: Request for the following: 

 

1 - “No Trucks” and “Dead End” Signage at W Bishop St and S Spring St Intersection 

2 - A Posted and Enforced Loading Zone and Loading Time 

3 - Designated Area for Vehicle Turnaround on W Bishop St 

 

Dear Mr Stewart, 

 

My husband and I own the property at 135 South Spring Street that operates as Belle Mercantile. Part of 

our property includes a private drive behind the Dollar General to access the rear of our building. Over 

the past several years, we have had at least 10 instances of 18-wheel tractor trailers getting onto our 

property to turn around after traveling up West Bishop Street.  West Bishop terminates where the public 

road meets the existing private driveway leading to the site of the former Bellefonte Academy. Trucks 

turning around have caused damage to our property and to the neighboring building (Dollar General). The 

Dollar General was backed into by an 18-wheeler about 3 years ago resulting in damage and a subsequent 

repair of their brickwork. Most recently, a West Penn Power pole was backed in to and sod uprooted by a 

truck delivering to the Dollar General on July 13th.  On occasion, we get blocked in our private lane while 

they attempt to turn around and we have had to help them try to back up down West Bishop without 

hitting the recycling dumpster and parked cars.  

 

Also, an issue with West Bishop St design is the constant stream of cars turning around in our drive or 

entering the neighboring private property to proceed back to S Spring St, via the former Academy Private 

Drive.  The parking spaces along West Bishop St are heavily used; however, there is no plan as to how 

the drivers should exit the spaces.  The angle of the spaces along with the narrow street and the recycling 

dumpster make it nearly impossible for drivers to exit the street without forcing use of the private road at 

the Academy property or forcing a 3 point turn on private property.   

  

In light of these concerns, I kindly request that Bellefonte Borough considers installing appropriate 

signage at the corner of West Bishop Street and South Spring Street to address this issue. Specifically, we 

believe that the installation of "No Trucks" and "Dead End" signage would effectively deter larger 

vehicles from entering and turning around in private drives, thus reducing the potential for accidents and 

property damage. 

  

The creation of an enforced Loading Zone and Time with signage will increase pedestrian and driver 

safety, as this congested area is difficult to drive through and navigate on foot when trucks are parked on 

both sides of the street at some of the busiest times of the day. 



Bellefonte Borough  August 14, 2023 

135  Sou th  Sp r in g  S t ree t  Be l l e fon te  Penn sy l van i a  16823  

Additionally, the turnaround procedure for the dead-end West Bishop St needs to be addressed, we 

propose the removal of the cardboard recycling dumpster and the transition of that space into an 

appropriate turn around/cul-de-sac area.  This dumpster is redundant to the existing dumpster located in 

the public lot by the Waffle Shop. 

 

We understand that the Borough Council's main priority is the safety and well-being of its residents and 

visitors. This area of downtown is becoming more active with cars and pedestrians as more and more 

businesses are opening on West Bishop Street.  By implementing these changes, you will be helping to 

create a safer environment for everyone in our community. We truly appreciate your attention to this 

matter and your consideration of our request. 

 

If you require any further information or would like to discuss this matter in more detail, please feel free- 

to contact me at 814-360-6989 or hello@bellemercantile.com.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Andrea Skirpan 

Brian Bonner 

Owners, Belle Mercantile 



P.O. Box 307
Bellefonte, PA 16823
814-424-7571
bellefontehpf.org

Board of Directors
Amy H. Kelchner 
PRESIDENT

Joanne L. Tosti-Vasey
VICE PRESIDENT

Nancy J. Perkins
SECRETARY/TREASURER

Jeanne T. Newlin
PRESIDENT EMERITUS

PRESERVE RESTORE REIMAGINE

           Bellefonte
Historic Preservation
             Foundation 

17 August 2023

TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council
RE:  Bellefonte’s Climate Action Plan

Dear Bellefonte Borough Council Members,

As a homeowner, supporter of historic preservation and having concern about our 
environmental future, I wanted to go on record in support of Bellefonte’s 2020 Climate 
Action Plan.

A primary economic driver is the environmental quality of life here - the clean air, the 
exceptional water quality and supply and the landscape.  Whatever can be done to protect 
and improve those assets should be a goal for Council and the community since all will 
benefit.  It will encourage tourism, economic development and protect property values.

Aspects of the Climate Action Plan are ambitious and due to the reordering of our lives 
after the covid pandemic, may seem unachievable, but we must start somewhere to 
achieve results.  There was a time when no one recycled anything such as paper, glass and 
plastics.  Now we take it for granted as an component of everyday living.  Before recycling, 
“trash mountains” just got larger until there was effort to curb what we discard. 

The results of the CAP survey listed a variety of responses.  Most new ideas face rejection 
at first but later evolve as a way to do business.  Since Bellefonte competes with other 
communities as a destination to live and work, we must show willingness to acknowledge 
environmental issues and implement a strategy to deal with the obvious environmental 
changes that are well documented and publicized.

It may seem that a small community such as ours will not have much impact on the 
environment but our actions will impact us and will be a model for others.

I urge you to adopt the Climate Action Plan and work with the community to help initiate 
its goals.

With Best Regards,

Nancy Perkins, Secretary / Treasurer



TO:  Borough Council 
FROM: Joseph Griffin 
RE:  Climate Action Plan 
DATE: August 17, 2023 

 

I understand that Council is debating whether to abandon Bellefonte’s Climate 
Action Plan.  Allow me to share my perspective on the matter. 

I’m an old man, who has lived well beyond his three score and ten.  When I was 
born, near the end of WW II, the world had less than a third of its current 
population.  The proliferation of humanity has caused old Gaia quite a few 
problems.  The oceans, land, and atmosphere are now unclean because of our 
carelessness.  Science, which helped us wreck this lovely planet, now allows us to 
understand the harm we have wrought and its likely consequences for us. 

Some of these consequences will become painfully apparent over this decade and 
the next.  Each year will bring more trouble to just about everybody.  As the only 
child of an only child with no children of my own, I don’t have to worry about my 
relations.  But most people do and soon will. 

In the big scheme of things, it doesn’t much matter what Bellefonte does.  It can 
practice good stewardship of the earth or keep stomping on the grapes of wrath.  
Either way, the future residents of this town will pay the price for what we and our 
immediate ancestors have done.  Still, there is a reason to behave as if we cared 
about our only home, this lonely planet. 

I will feel better and most of the future inhabitants of Bellefonte will feel better if 
we eventually manage to show respect for our environment.  Who wouldn’t prefer 
to be innocent of contributing to a catastrophe, even if it were inevitable? 

The Climate Action Plan seems thoughtful and prudent.  When reasonable people 
have objections to some of its provisions, it can be modified.   But to simply 
discard it is to boldly state that Bellefonte doesn’t care about our environment.   
The Climate Action Plan won’t save us from our sins and those of our fathers, but 
it is evidence that we have finally come to our senses.  

I hope that Borough Council will remove its knee from the neck of Nature.   I 
would rather Bellefonte suffer the future as an innocent party than as one that is 
only getting what it deserves. 



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'(�)*+�)�$,-).)/�)�0�12��-).,/&3'+�(*4�(-)�5�&�,3�"6�22�7�.4���!�8�.�9 ���

:;<�=>?@ABC�DEB?FG�H>AGIJKLM�NOPQJRO�SRTOPQJROUVPKKPWXYOPLJZ[X\]^P_�̀abcadedf�̀gbc�hijXghKkTTJ�lXMPROk�SJ_XMPROkUVPKKPWXYOPLJZ[X\]mn�opqrrstupvsrv�wxy�yznr�n{�yzv�|}x{|np�ws|~vy�sr�|}��vrw}{�v{|v��zs{~rt�spwz����spwz�����yv�s�yt��}�}x�z��s{s�v��}�}x�z�}���vppv�}{yv�����vry��s����y�vvy�vppv�}{yv�uo������uz}{v�����������������������������v�v�n|~��sx�v�� �r����¡��¢�r{�|}�£¤¥¦§���xvr�sqt�ox�xry���t�����������u��̈���spwz��yv�s�y� �ryv�s�y¢�vppv�}{yvws��}©£ª�«}x��¬}z{r}{� �}z{r}{¢�vppv�}{yvws��}©£¤®̄°¥±§��²pn�syv�o|³}{�ups{��spwz�s{��«}x�t�́{�}�yx{syvpq�µ¶��{}y�s�pv�y}�s·v{��yzv�{v�y�²}x{|np��vv³{��r}�µ¶��rv{�n{��yznr�v�snp�n{ryvs����o̧v��sy|zn{��yzv�psry�²}x{|np��vv³{�t�µ��vpnv©v�yzsy�yzv�²pn�syv�o|³}{�ups{��npp��v���}x�zy�xw�sy�yzv��}�~�vrrn}{�s{��w}rrn�pq�©}yv��}{�sy�yzv��v�xps��²}x{|np��vv³{��}{�ox�xry�����o̧v���vs�n{��yzv�²pn�syv�o|³}{�ups{t�µ¶��{}y�n{��s©}��}��yzv�²}x{|np�©}³{���}��ny����zv��v�v�sp�s{���ysyv¹}©v�{�v{yr�s�v�sp�vs�q�n�wpv�v{³{��wps{r�yzsy��npp�|}ry�ys�wsqv�r��}{vq���µ��yzv��vppv�}{yv��}�}x�z²}x{|np�©}yvr�n{��s©}��}��yzv�ups{t�yzv�v��}�}x��p}|sp�ys�vr��vn{���snrv��y}}º������zv��v�v�sp�¹}©v�{�v{y�nr�v©v{�p}}~n{��n{y}�}x��z}xrvz}p��swwpns{|vr�y}��v�xpsyv�yzv���}�v�yzs{�yzvqsp�vs�q�s�v��v�xpsyv���µ¶��{}y�n{yv�vryv��n{�wx»{��r}ps��ws{vpr�}{��q��}}��}��s��n{��npp�n{��q��s|~qs����µpn~v��q�{syx�sp��sr��}��zvs³{���q�z}�v�s{���syv����µ¶��{}y�n{yv�vryv��n{�wx�|zsrn{��s{�¼½�|s��yzsy�nr�r�spps{��n��µ�p}}~v��sy�s�ps��v��|s�t�ny¶r�©v�q�v�wv{rn©vº��¾xy�}���vs|z��}���}ry�p}|sp��vrn�v{yr��m}��s�v�yzv��s·v�nvr�}n{��y}��v��nrw}rv��}���zv{�yzvq�s�v�{}�p}{�v��xrv�xp¿��µ¶©v��vs���zv�v�¼½�|s�r�zs©v�|sx�zy�}{�À�v�s{��y}wxy�yzv�À�v�}xyt�ny��spp}{r�s{���spp}{r�}���syv��yzsy¶r�xrv�º�m}��nr�yzsy�rs©n{��yzv�v{©n�}{�v{y¿���v©v�sp�|s�rspvr�v{�µ¶©v�ysp~v��y}�rsq�yzv��sq�y}��}�nr�s�zq��n��|s��}��y�x|~�Á��sr�s{���s·v�q���²s���s{x�s|yx�v�r�s�vspr}�{}y�rvppn{��yzv�s�}x{y�}��¼½�|s�r�yzvq�wps{{v��}{�rvppn{������zsy¶r�yzsy�yvppn{��yzv��v�v�sp�¹}©v�{�v{y¿¿�µ{��v©nv�n{��yzv��vrw}{rvr���}��yzv�rx�©vq�yzsy��sr��}{v�n{�yzv��w�n{�t��zn|z�µ��vvp��zs��s�p}��s�}x{y�}��vrw}{�v{yr���}��s�y}�{�}������t�µ��}xp��rsq�yzv�v��v�v�s�p}y�}��{v�s³©v��vrw}{rvr�}{�s�p}y�}��yzvÂxvr³}{r���µ���vrn�v{yr��s{y�y}�s·v{��rv�n{s�r�s{��ws�³|nwsyv�n{�nyv�r�yzsy�s�v�n{�yzv�ups{t�µ�zs©v�{}w�}�pv���nyz�yzsy��xy�y}��v�|�s��n{��s�p}y�}��ryxÃ�yzsy¶r�n{�yzv�²pn�syv�o|³}{�ups{t�yzsy¶r��}n{��y}�|}ry��vsr�s�ys�wsqv��s{��rv{n}��|n³Äv{��}�v��}{vqt�µ¶��{}y�n{yv�vryv����«}{¶y��vy��v���}{�t�µ��v|q|pv�s{��zs©v�s�v���s·v�q�}wv�syv��wnv|vr�}��ps�{�vÂxnw�v{y��µ��}xp��spr}��v�n{yv�vryv��n{�s·v{�n{��r}�v�}��yzv�rv�n{s�r



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'(�)*+�)�$,-).)/�)�0�12��-).,/&3'+�(*4�(-)�5�&�,3�"6�22�7�.4���!�8�.�9 ���

:;<:�=<>�?@�AB@C@D�?E:�:;<:FG�H:I��J;<:FG�H:�KAHLK�:A�MAG:�:;@�DANL:ANL�?EGHL@GGO?EHPDHLK�ANL@CG�NH:;�:;@H:@=G�HL�:;@�QP<L�GR@MHSM<PP>�TAC�:;@=U��V<L�:;@>�<BACD�GAP<CW�@:MI�:;<:�:;@�QP<L�HG�G<>HLK�:;@>FPP�;<X@�:AMA=RP>�NH:;�<LD�;AN�<C@�:;@>�KAHLK�:A�R<>�TAC�H:YII:;@�:ANL�TAPZG�:;<:�G;AR�HL�:;@HC�G:AC@G�NHPP�G@@�:;@�RCHM@GKA�ERI��[K<HLW�:;@�\@D@C<P�<LD�]:<:@�̂AX@CL=@L:G�<C@�<PC@<D>�TACMHLK�L@N�C@KEP<_ALG�AL�EG�<LD�HGLF:�:;HGDERPHM<_LK�N;<:�HG�<PC@<D>�?@HLK�DAL@I����[G�<�̀@PP@TAL:@�̀ACAEK;�C@GHD@L:�<LD�:<aR<>@CW�bF=�<GZHLK�:;@�̀@PP@TAL:@�̀ACAEK;�VAELMHP�:A�XA:@�:;HG�RP<LDANLI������c;<LZHLK�>AE�HL�<DX<LM@W]MAd�e<EK@Cfgh�iI�j<=?�]:I@̀PP@TAL:@��]@L:�TCA=�e<HP�TAC�JHLDA



����������	
���� �����������������������������

�����	�������������� �� �!�!����"#�$��%���&��'()*+,�*��$-.*/*0��*�1)�2
)�.*/-0&3�',�(+4�(.*��5�&�467��&�4�$�5$�89*33�%: ���

;<=>?@A�BC@=DE�F<?E�G�HEI=JDE>AE@?<�BKI=LDJM�ND?JK�G�OPL@?=E?Q=<=@M�OPJIAMRSTUSTS�VWXYSX�Z[\[]SX̂S_̀abcSdefYgchijW�klmnlòop�mmqrp�stigqNDJDuvDI�wQDJDxQA<<AyDE@Az?uvDI{����9������"���9����5��2��" �����!#���	|�!������%�"�����9������"���9����5��"%�3��%���5���%�3��"�|��� ��}�%��������}����5�%�"5�!���"��������"������"#���������������"%�!������� ��� ����������%��������9����5����9������"����|������������}�%�" ������|���}���"�"��"��5���"�%� �!!�"����3����"������"������������.�����|����� ���������� ����"�����#��������������� �%�3"��3"�"%�������}���"�"����������������"#��� ��}�����|��"%����"%���������9������"���1"}���"!�"����%}�����2�!!������3��������%��������}������}����"�"��%� ���"�� � ����������3������������%�"�������#� �!��!�����"���!�%�#�����""�}���"����������������������!�����#���"������|�!��������'�%�"���"%�����5�������%���"�!�������"��������"%���5�%�"���"5�!�"���#���|�!�"����������3����5��#����������"�����"�!��������������"�1~�����������������!���0���1"}���"!�"����%}������9��%���55����%�3����������"����������� ��"%������� � ��������"}�����$������������$!��������6�����"���%�5������3�� ��|����"��"%�}�%��� ""������3���%"����"�3���3�������� ��|��������� ��������9������"���2��" �����5"��%�����3��"����������������!"���!�� ���"������}���#�5��!� ��3��"��������}�%��2��!���� ���"���"��|����� ��������3�����!"�� ""��������������%���"������"%�"%� �"��"������%�������!�����"5�������}�#��"��3���#��"�%�"������� ��%����!�"�����������"���9������"��� ���%�#�����!� ��5��������"�������!����������������������3�����!� �"��!���"����"���!������3���3�����%��"5�#���������}��5�������������3����� �!!�"�����#"%�"�"5�����2��!���� ���"���"�"%��"%��"5�����1"}���"!�"����%}������9��%���������# ��"%�� ������5"�������""�}���"�"%������"����������� �" ��"�%� ���+�"��" ��%�"5��������"5���5�"�����"�%��"��� ��"���"�9������"����.����������������������!���5�����" ���"�%���5"�+���"��!�� ���"���������%�"��"%���!��3"���%��"�������� ��"����3�%���5������5��%��"%����������5����#����"�"�%�!� ��� � �"%����"������� �"��%��������"5�!�!�"��!���3�%��#��5�����!���������"#�����������9�#����" ".����.�%



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'()*+,�*�$-.*/*0�*�1)23)�.*/-0&4',�(+5�(.*�6�&�'1!��%$�	78�9 �:�'��; ���

<=>?@AB�CDA>EF�G=@FHIJKLM�NOPQQOK�RSKOOTUVWXYZJP[\]LZ^NO_�V̀ab̀cdcU�Wedc�fghLeiEjEklEm�noEjEpoB==BqEFABr@klEmst]euOvLKJI�t[OOSLM�R_][OOSLMXvO[[OwLMSOxJ\YLŷz{LJMMO�hLQSP|}JQO~�R�SLQSP|yJQO~XvO[[OwLMSOxJ\YLŷzuLMJ[_��L[_OKZJM�R_IL[_OKZJMXvO[[OwLMSOxJ\YLŷuOJK�gK\�{LIMQLM���Q�J�KOQP_OMS�JM_�ILZOL�MOK�PM��O[[OwLMSO��LKL�YI�Q�NOQS�NJK_����KO��OQS�SIJS�SIO��O[[OwLMSO�LKL�YI�tL�M]P[�]LMSPM�O��LK�PMY�LM�SIO�YLJ[Q�QOS�LM�SIO�t[PZJSO��]SPLM�f[JM\��OKO�JKO�Z~KOJQLMQe��tJKvLM�_PL�P_O��t�c��PM�SIO�JSZLQxIOKO��JKZQ�SIO�x[JMOS��]J�QPMY�][PZJSO�]IJMYO\������������������������������������������������� ������¡������������ ¢�£¤¥����¦���������§¤¤¢����\̈��ISSxQè̀][PZJSO\MJQJ\YLy��{�[~�cdcU���©����ª¦������«������¬¦��������¦������� ¢�����®��¦�������������ª�����̄ ��¦����¬����¢¦��������§¤°±�ª¦������«������¬¦��²���w�S�KO�YLJ[�PQ�SL�J]IPOyO�Vd³�OZPQQPLMQ�KO_�]SPLMv~�cd́d�]LZxJKO_�SL�cdd́�yJ[�OQ���IP]I�ZJ~�vO�OQSPZJSO_��QPMY�SIO�cdaW�µ�µ�PMyOMSLK~�JM_�ML�M�xLx�[JSPLM�YKL�SI�KJSO\�hIO�J]SPLMQ�QOS�wLKSI�PM�SIPQ�x[JM���IOM�ZL_O[O_��wJ[[�QILKS�Lw�SIPQQSJSO�P_O�YLJ[��JM_�JQ��PSI�SIO�fOMMQ~[yJMPJ�QSJSO�x[JM��P[[�KO��PKO�w�KSIOK�J]SPLMQ�SL�vOPMSKL_�]O_��IOM�wOJQPv[O\̈��t[PZJSO��]SPLM�f[JM��¶�O]�SPyO�H�ZZJK~��xJYO�·���hIO�KO]OMS�JM_�ZJQQPyO�v�P[_�x�Lw�YKOOMIL�QO�YJQOQ�PM�L�K�JSZLQxIOKO�PQ�]LM]OPyJv[~�OyOMZLKO�O�SKJLK_PMJK~�SIJM�]IJMYOQ�LvQOKyO_�SI�Q�wJK�KOYJK_PMY�SOZxOKJS�KO��QOJ�[OyO[��JM_�QML�]LyOK�PM�SIO�̧LKSIOKM�IOZPQxIOKO�PM�SIJS�]�KKOMS�[OyO[Q�YKOJS[~�O�]OO_�KO]LK_O_�xKO]O_OMS�YLPMYvJ]��Z�]I�w�KSIOK�SIJM�SIO�ZL_OKM�SOZxOKJS�KO�KO]LK_\��MSIKLxLYOMP]�YKOOMIL�QO�YJQOZPQQPLMQ�IJyO�PM]KOJQO_�QPM]O�SIO�xKO|PM_�QSKPJ[�OKJ�_KPyOM�[JKYO[~�v~�O]LMLZP]�JM_�xLx�[JSPLMYKL�SI\�¹KLZ�cddd�SL�cdad�OZPQQPLMQ��OKO�SIO�IPYIOQS�PM�IPQSLK~\��PQSLKP]J[�OZPQQPLMQ�IJyO�_KPyOMJSZLQxIOKP]�]LM]OMSKJSPLMQ�Lw�]JKvLM�_PL�P_O��ZOSIJMO�JM_�MPSKL�Q�L�P_O�SL�[OyO[Q�SIJS�JKO�MxKO]O_OMSO_�PM�JS�[OJQS�SIO�[JQS�Vdd�ddd�~OJKQ��[OJ_PMY�SL�JM��xSJ�O�Lw�OMOKY~�v~�SIO�][PZJSOQ~QSOZ���ftt��cda·�\��M�KOQxLMQO�SL�SIO�xKLv[OZ�Lw�][PZJSO�]IJMYO��ZJM~�]LZZ�MPSPOQ�PM�SIOºMPSO_�HSJSOQ�JKO�SJ�PMY�KOQxLMQPvP[PS~�wLK�J__KOQQPMY�OZPQQPLMQ�JS�SIO�[L]J[�[OyO[\�»��������¢��������¼�������������®����������®�����������������������¦¢������������¦¢�������¦¦��������®�¦���¦���¦�����½�¦���¦�®�����������������������®���¦������¦�¢�����������®�®����������®������������̄������������ ���������²�©����®����������������������������¦����������������½��������������������������®�����½�����®¢��������¢½�®����� ��¦���®½�����̄�������������½�¦���¦�®������������������������¦¦¢��������������������������������������²��M



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'()*+,�*�$-.*/*0�*�1)23)�.*/-0&4',�(+5�(.*�6�&�'1!��%$�	78�9 �:�'��; ���

<==>?>@AB�C@D<C�E@FGHAIGA?J�<HG�KH>I<H>CL�HGJK@AJ>MCG�N@H�?OG�KH@F>J>@A�@N�GIGHEGADL�JGHF>DGJ�<A=?OG�I>?>E<?>@A�@N�A<?PH<C�=>J<J?GH�>IK<D?JQ�RO>CG�?O>J�SC<A�>J�=GJ>EAG=�?@�HG=PDG�@FGH<CC�GI>JJ>@AJCGFGCJB�<J�?OG�GNNGD?J�@N�DC>I<?G�DO<AEG�MGD@IG�I@HG�D@II@A�<A=�JGFGHGB�C@D<C�E@FGHAIGA?<=<K?<?>@A�K@C>D>GJ�HGTP>H>AE�UGCCGN@A?G�U@H@PEO�V@PAD>C�<KKH@F<C�W>CC�MG�NPA=<IGA?<C�>AKHGJGHF>AE�?OG�WGCN<HG�@N�HGJ>=GA?J�<A=�MPJ>AGJJGJQX�YVC>I<?G�ZD?>@A�SC<AB�[\\]̂_̀a�bbc�dèfgh]diĝj]�kl̀]̂l]m�\gj]�nop�qr?<H?>AE�>A�s<AP<HL�tutvB�UGCCGN@A?G�W>CC�GAE<EG�W>?O�D@IIPA>?L�IGIMGHJB�MPJ>AGJJGJB>AJ?>?P?>@AJB�<A=�@?OGH�J?<wGO@C=GHJ�?OH@PEO�<�VC>I<?G�ZD?>@A�SC<AA>AE�x<Jw�y@HDG�?@�KHGK<HG�N@H<AL�KHGHGTP>J>?G�@H�<==>?>@A<C�<D?>@AJ�AGG=G=�?@�MGE>A�SC<A�>IKCGIGA?<?>@AQ�xOGJG�KHGHGTP>J>?G<D?>@AJ�>ADCP=Gz{�VHG<?>AE�D>?>|GA�<=F>J@HL�EH@PKJ�N@H�KH@EH<IJ�?O<?�HGTP>HG�D@AJ>=GH<MCG�D@IIPA>?LGAE<EGIGA?Q{�}<?OGH>AE�M>=J�N@H�D@A?H<D?G=�JGHF>DGJ�<A=�GTP>KIGA?Q{�~<w>AE�AGDGJJ<HL�DO<AEGJ�?@�C@D<C�K@C>D>GJ�@H�G�>J?>AE�KH@EH<IJB�>ADCP=>AE�J?<NN>AEQ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ZJJGJJ>AE�?OG>IKCGIGA?<?>@A�J?<?PJ�@N�?OG�<D?>@AJ�W>CC�<CC@W�=G?GHI>A<?>@A�@N�WOG?OGH�?OG�<D?>@A�>J�KGHN@HI>AEWGCC�<A=�?@�>=GA?>NL�D@HHGD?>FG�IG<JPHGJQ�xO>J�KH@DGJJ�>J�<CJ@�<A�@KK@H?PA>?L�?@�PA=GHJ?<A=�M<HH>GHJ?@�>IKCGIGA?<?>@A�<A=�>=GA?>NL�MGJ?�KH<D?>DGJ�@H�AGW�@KK@H?PA>?>GJ�>A�I@F>AE�N@HW<H=���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������Q�xO>J�W>CC�OGCKUGCCGN@A?G�?H<Dw�>?J�} }�GI>JJ>@AJ�HG=PD?>@A�KH@EHGJJQ�R>?O�?OG�<KKH@F<C�@N�?O>J�VC>I<?G�ZD?>@ASC<A�>A�tutu�?OG�N>HJ?�I@A>?@H>AE�<D?>@A�HGK@H?�W>CC�MG�=PG�>A�tutt�<A=�?OG�N>HJ?�NPCC�I@A>?@H>AEHGK@H?�W>?O�?OG�PK=<?G=�} }�>AFGA?@H>GJ�W>CC�MG�=PG�>A�tu¡uQX�YVC>I<?G�ZD?>@A�SC<AB�~@A>?@H>AESC<AB�K<EG�¢¡£�¤�<I�KH@P=�@N�UGCCGN@A?G�U@H@PEO�V@PAD>C�N@H�>?J�<D?>@AJ�<CHG<=L�?<wGA�W>?O�HGE<H=�?@�?OG�VC>I<?GZD?>@A�SC<A�YVZS£�¥�<A=�?O<?�W<J�GFGA�W>?O�<�K<A=GI>D�J?<H?>AE�J@@A�<N?GH�?OG�VZS�W<JGJ?<MC>JOG=Q�¤?�O<J�@ACL�MGGA�?OHGG�LG<HJ¦�?OGHG�>J�IPDO�?@�MG�=@AGQ�¤�C@@w�N@HW<H=�?@�?OG�V@PAD>C§J=GD>J>@AJ�@A�WO>DO�<D?>@AJ�?@�?<wG�AG�?�?@�KHGJGHFG�<A=�>IKH@FG�UGCCGN@A?G§J�OG<C?OL�GAF>H@AIGA?N@H�=GD<=GJ�?@�D@IGQ�



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'()*+,�*�$-.*/*0�*�1)23)�.*/-0&4',�(+5�(.*�6�&�'1!��%$�	78�9 �:�'��; ���

<=>?@A@BCD<EFAG>�HI�J@=KK@A









Spring Creek Watershed Commission (SCWC) –  
Monthly Municipal Meeting Schedules 

 
(7P start unless noted) per Centre County Government Directory 

 

Bellefonte - 1st & 3rd Mondays 7:30P - Aug 21 or Sept 4  

Milesburg - 2nd Monday 6:30P - Sept 11 

State College - 1st & 3rd Mondays - Aug 21 or Sept 4 

 

Benner - 1st Monday - Sept 4 

College - 1st & 3rd Mondays - Aug 21 or Sept 4 

Ferguson - 1st & 3rd Tuesdays - Aug 15 or Sept 5 

Halfmoon - 2nd Thursday - Sept 14 

Harris - 2nd Monday 7:30P - Sept 11 

Patton - 1st & 3rd Wednesdays - Aug 16 or Sept 6 

Potter - 1st & 3rd Mondays - Aug 21 or Sept 4 

Spring - 1st Monday - Sept 4 

Walker - 1st Monday 6P - Sept 4 
 





���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'(�)*+�)�$,-).)/�)�0�12��-).,/&3'+�(*4�(-)�5�&�'��-��.���4���2��6&��7 ���

89:;�<=><?@?<A=�?A�BCDE�FGEEAH?�I@HH<FJGHK�EAC?LF�9AHMFBAEF�NAH�OCDDCNA=?C�PAG?BQRSTU�VSWXYSX�Z[\SWXYSX] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfghT_�ijkljmnmo�opki�qrhSps̀tYYd�RSW_ubt�Zd[SW_ubt] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfgvwd̀cW�xb_ydub�ZuYb_ydub] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfgvRSXd̀[zS̀[_u{dX�Z[WS̀[_u{dX] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfgv|dûdud�RdXX�Z|[dXX] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfgv}_Xb�|_uX~_uZ}̂_uX~_u] _̂̀̀_aSXb_cdeUSfgs̀tYYd�q̀_dY_�~X�̀T[_�bW~Y�~X�bW_��STX�~̀�cd��_b�aSu�rSX[dt�Y�̂TY~X_YY�{__b~XUe�hWdX�Y�RSTUe��_b��Tb̀SS��aSu�~�x�������������������������������������������������� ��¡�¡¢£�¤¥ �¦§¦̈�̈©¥¤�ª�«���¬�����®�¢̄°±�¢���²£�¢̄°³�¢�����́��£µ����³�¶�·�¡��¬�̧�¢�����²�̧�¢������́��£µ����³��¹º»�¼�����³�£�̄���£��̧�µ�¢¡µµ��£�½����¢�¡���µ�£¾¢�¿��À¢̧�µ¢�́���Á��́��£���¡£̧Â���������5��"%�4��""����"�!������##���"�����"%�ÃÄ!�3����"5������������������"%�"5�%��� ����������� ���������%� ����""�"������� ����%�+�%5���"���,�"5��5��������Ã"� �������Ä���"�����!������3����+�%5���"����3���������"�%�������"5��5����������5��!�����������3�������!��5�"���*�%��"�������5��"�Å�" ��%�"5���"5����!������������������"5���"%�3����"5�3������������Æ�"5�%����"�%��������������1�"�����1��"�����(����1�"�������3��" �!����%����%��������1�"����1�����1��������Æ�Æ���������$���������������1�"����Ç���������������������È������"���(�����1�"������"%�!����É/���������+�%5���"������������ �����������"������������Ê�����#��5�������"%���� ��"5��������4����"��Æ�"������"�Ç������6�Ë��Ì�������Æ��������È������"����"%�Ç�����1����5���Ã"��%%����"����5�Æ�"5���������������!�" ���������Í�5��Ç���Ç���%�3"��"�Ç�����1����5���"�Ç������Ì����4����"�3����#�������"5�3����������������È������"���(�����1�"�����"%�����1�"�����1��"�����(�����1�"����%���"5����Æ���������+�%5���"��������%����"����"5����"%�"5����5��!�����#�����������������3������Æ����$ ���%���� ����#������3������Æ�����"5�/�� ��"5��������3��� �"������������������� ��Æ����"%���� ��"5�������������������"%�%����"�%��������"�È������"���-����������"5����5�Æ��4����"���3��!�3�� �!�����È������"�����"%����������"%�ÃÄ!�3����"5��������������È����5��!�5��� �"��%����"��"Æ������"�����������"�" ���������"��������3��������Î�-����������"�"�"�������3�����!����#�%5����"%�#�5��"��5���3����Æ���Æ������"5�3��"��%������5�"�*����� ���������"%���������4����"Ä��Æ������$ ����������!��"��%�%��$������"%���-��3���%�#����������"���%�������È������"���È����5��!�5��� �"��%�����������"5�������!��3���"5��������"��������È������"���(�����Í����������!���"�3����������"Æ������"��������"������������������������Æ���"��Ï������"�����������Ä%���������"�3�!���Ð/��"��������������!���"%�����"���"���������"�����ÃÄ�����������3��%���������"5����!�������"%����"��������������%������È�����##�



���������	
���� ������������������������������

�����
�������������� �� �!�!�����"#�$��%���&��'(�)*+�)�$,-).)/�)�0�12��-).,/&3'+�(*4�(-)�5�&�'��-��.���4���2��6&��7 ���

889:;<=>:?=@�AB?<CB<=�DEF@�GG�BHHIJ:?KE



August 17, 2023  
Bellefonte Borough Summary Report –Safe Routes to Parks Bellefonte  
 
Safe Routes to Parks Commitee (Kathryn Spielvogel and Jennilyn Schuster)  
Bellefonte Historic Preserva�on Founda�on (BHPF)  
 
On behalf of the Safe Routes Bellefonte Planning committee and the Bellefonte Historic 
Preservation Foundation (BHPF), we want to thank you for your participation in the Safe Routes 
to Parks Community Engagement sessions. Safe Routes Partnership staff facilitated three 
workshop sessions over the course of a two-day, in-person site visit (July 17-18). Multiple 
sessions were convened to allow for a broad representation of community members, residents, 
and government agency staff. Over 70 attendees joined us from around Pennsylvania to 
collaborate on ideas, strategizing and planning for the future of Bellefonte’s Parks and Rails to 
Trails projects.  
 
The main objective of these meetings was to work towards an action plan to accomplish 
the following goals:  
 

• Improve connection between Talleyrand and Masullo Parks 
• Improve pedestrian safety and access to Talleyrand Park 
• Increase regional connectivity via greenways and trails 

 
Participants expressed a range of ideas during these sessions:  
 

• High-traffic streets are dangerous. These include the intersection at High and Water 
Street (This was the number one response from participants). It creates not only a 
physical barrier, but a mental one that prevents people from wanting to walk to that area. 
 

• Desire for safe walking connections that include South Potter Street, Downtown to 
Axeman and improved connectivity to Masullo Park 

 
• Leverage the park assets of natural beauty and waterways for economic development 

and local enjoyment.  
 

• Emphasis on water, fountains and the Big Spring as a feature  
 

• Increase access for people of all abilities (wheelchairs, people with limited mobility, etc.) 
 

• Use Safe Route to Parks as a way to celebrate a sense of place and history 
 

• Increase transportation options and more people walking and biking  
 

• The importance of parks for people of all ages and abilities. 
 

• Enthusiasm around coalition-building Identified incremental steps and project phasing for 
each goal area with various state agencies: DCNR, DCED, PNC, etc.  

 
• Identified specific partners and grant resources via state agencies and federal 

transportation grants 



• Important features for routes to connect parks like lighting, bridge connectivity, trees and 
wayfinding.  
 

• Parks as a place for gathering to celebrate milestones and family time.  
.  

Next Steps in the Safe Routes to Parks | Bellefonte Plan  
 

• Safe Routes to Parks planning committee is working on the next steps in the Action 
Plan, that will be completed in September and presented to Borough Council.  
 

• Safe Routes to Parks Bellefonte Committee is working in collaboration with Big Spring 
Project, Stage at Talleyrand, Wayfinding and Signage, Lighting in the Park with 
Talleyrand Park Committee and the Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society. This 
coordination is allowing for a cohesive planning effort to benefit all Talleyrand Park 
affiliated groups.  

 
• Pennsylvania Environmental Council (PEC) has committed to advising and partnering on 

the project.  
 

• The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has hired an Active Transportation 
consultant for Centre County and will be considering the Safe Routes to Parks plans are 
part of their overall Centre County assessment.  

 
• Bellefonte is the center point in the Rails to Trails plans for the State College to 

Milesburg Trails. This trail will be the main focus for Active Transportation in Centre 
County and it is an incredible opportunity for Bellefonte to take advantage of the funding 
available.  
 

• Due to the incredible response from the Safe Routes Team and their experience in 
Pennsylvania and Bellefonte, they are trying to create a permanent Pennsylvania Safe 
Routes to Parks program which would allow the Bellefonte Safe Routes Committee to 
continue receiving their advisory support.  
 

STOP. LOOK. IMAGINE.  
 
Please join us (Rain or Shine) to enjoy S. Potter street which will be closed to vehicular traffic 
from 1-4 PM on Sunday, August 27.  
 
 

• Bike rodeo for young riders looking to practice their cycling skills by Walk Works  
• Helmet fitting with The Bike Roost  
• Aquatic bug exploration with Trout Unlimited  
• Food from Super Duper Cafe  
• My Cafe Buzz  
• Community-Created Chalk Mural 
• Face painting  
• “Imagine This” outdoor vignettes by Schuster’s Landscaping  



• Educational outreach about the potential future of S. Potter Street and the Talleyrand 
and Masullo Parks areas 

• Kids obstacle course 
• Centre Bikes, The Stage at Talleyrand, Happy Valley Women’s Cycling, Felicity’s Pet 

Supplies, Bellefonte Historical Railroad.  
• The Print Factory  
• Music and more!  

 
If you would like to volunteer or participate in the August 27 event, please contact us.  
jennilyn.schuster@gmail.com, kspiel77@gmail.com  
 
 

mailto:jennilyn.schuster@gmail.com
mailto:kspiel77@gmail.com


BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

    Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

August 7, 2023- 7:30 p.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

I. CALL TO ORDER

The August 17th, 2023 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 

p.m.

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (followed by a moment of silence)

III. MEMBERS PRESENT Mr. Kent Bernier 

Mr. Randall Brachbill  

Ms. Deborah Cleeton  

Ms. Barbara Dann  

Mr. Douglas Johnson  

Ms. Shawna McKean (Zoom) 

Ms. Rita Purnell 

Ms. Johanna Sedgwick (Excused) 

Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey (Excused) 

Mayor Buddy Johnson 

STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager 

Mr. Shawn Weaver, Police Chief  

Ms. Gina Thompson, Planning, Zoning & HARB Administrator 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

 Mr. Brachbill requested to add an item regarding the appointment of an interim fire chief under 

New Business.  

 Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve adding the above item to the agenda 

under New Business. No discussion. Roll Call Vote.  Motion carried. The item will be added to 

the meeting agenda. 

Mr. Kent Bernier         yay Ms. Shawna McKean      yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton   yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick   n/a 

Ms. Barbara Dann  yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  n/a 

Mr. Doug Johnson yay 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

August 7, 2023 

Page 2 

 

V.  PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments 

The Mayor awarded Officer Macy Neideigh a public commendation for her service to the borough 

in apprehending armed robbery suspects. 

 

There was an extensive discussion regarding the Rental Housing Code Ordinance. Several 

residents spoke and Council voted to NOT adopt any new changes to the ordinance, other than 

those that are mandated by the state.  

 

A resident spoke regarding a hardscape project being completed by her neighbors in Parkview 

Heights neighborhood. Her concerns included trees that were removed, a retaining wall and fill 

that has impacted their property.  

 

A resident spoke regarding issues with usage of the baseball field. 

 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS  

 Community Drought Watch remains in place across Pennsylvania. No Council action is needed. 

 

Written Comments on the Centre Region Rental Housing and Building Safety Code Ordinance. 

No Council action is needed. 

 

Pennsylvania State Association of Boroughs (PSAB) Safety Group Dividend Program. The 

Borough received a dividend of $7,015.38.  No Council action is needed. 

 

Thank you to Officers Brower and Luse from Ed Mann pertaining to a Welfare Check. No Council 

action is needed. 

 

Mr. Demartino’s concerns within the Borough. Council may consider action to address the 

concerns in a future work session. 

 

CATA 2023 Fall service changes effective Thursday, August 17, 2023. No Council action is 

needed. 

 

Trinity United Methodist Church requests Borough Council consider adding language to the 

Commercial Zoning Ordinance to allow the use of temporary emergency shelters /ground floor 

residential. Council may consider action in a future work session. 

 

Downtown Bellefonte Inc. (DBI) Bellefonte Under the Lights event involving Street Closures, 

Use of Parking Lot, alcohol vendors (potentially) request for October 20, 2023. Staff can review 

this application and come back with recommendations. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

 

1. General  Council Meeting Minutes July 17, 2023 

2. Finance  Stover McGlaughlin Invoice June 2023 

3. Finance  Budget v. Actual June 2023  



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

August 7, 2023 

Page 3 

 

4. Finance  Budget V. Actual Summary June 2023  

5. Finance  Treasurer’s Report June 2023  

6. Finance  Voucher Summary June 2023  

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Consent Agenda items 1, 2,4, 5, & 6. 

No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

 

Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to approve the Consent Agenda item 3, Budget vs. 

Actual, June 2023, with the proposed amendment of changing the date from 2022 to 2023. No 

discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

The mayor commented that he is very proud and thankful for the Borough Police Department for 

their service. Earlier in the meeting, he presented Officer Neideigh with an award for Outstanding 

Service.  

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

NONE 

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

Centre County Courthouse Wall Construction is tentatively scheduled to begin mid-October 2023. 

No Council action is needed. 

 

Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) Sustainability Survey Letters to Community Members 

were mailed out on Friday, August 4, 2023. No Council action is needed. 

 

Rental Housing Ordinance No. 08072023-01.  (This item was moved to earlier in the meeting to 

accommodate the guests who attended the meeting tonight to discuss the Ordinance.) There was 

an extensive discussion regarding the ordinance and numerous residents spoke.  

 

Bernier motioned to not approve/adopt the current, proposed changes to the Rental Housing 

Code Ordinance, except for state-mandated changes. Brachbill seconded the motion. The 

motion to NOT adopt the proposed changes carried.  



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

August 7, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

 Mr. Kent Bernier              yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Shentel Cable Franchise Agreement and Resolution No. 08072023-01.  

 

Dann motioned and Brachbill seconded to conditionally approve the Shentel Cable Franchise 

Agreement and the Shentel Cable Resolution No. 08072023-01 as presented. The motion carried 

with no discussion. 

Mr. Kent Bernier              yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

South Potter Street Railroad Spur Title Search. Borough Solicitor has indicated that the title search 

is clean. Staff recommends if the purchase is approved, that it be conditional upon obtaining an 

Agreement with Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society regarding any joint uses and path 

connections to the spur.  

 

Consider a motion to purchase the spur from SEDA-COG JRA with the tracks in place for a 

cost of $18,932.00. Discussion included clarification of what benefits are included in 

purchasing the spur with the tracks. It was clarified that there are at least 2 benefits – tourism 

and it is an asset that will be easy to sell. It is approximately 600 ft of track. It was also asked 

where the money for the purchase would come from and it was clarified that the money would 

come from the General Fund. It’s possible that there could be grant monies available to help 

complete repairs of the tracks. It was also asked if there would be a fee charged to use the spur. 

With no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier              yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 

Governor’s Park Baseball Field signage.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to place signage at the Baseball field indicating a 

fine would be issued if used without Borough Permission. Discussion included clarification of 

what the fine would be and how to keep people off the field to avoid damage to the field by 

unauthorized users. It was discussed that there is no process in place for the public to be allowed 

to use the field and that it is a goal to establish a process. With no further discussion, the motion 

passed unanimously.  



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

August 7, 2023 

Page 5 

Mr. Kent Bernier        yay Ms. Shawna McKean      yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yay Ms. Rita Purnell yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton   yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick   N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann  yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson yay 

2023 Paving update- Paving in the Borough is delayed until late September.  No Council action 

is needed. 

X. NEW BUSINESS

 Request Donald Townsend Volunteer Application for Civil Service Commission 6-year Alternate 

Vacancy.  

Dann motioned and Cleeton seconded to appoint Donald Townsend to the Civil Service 

Commission as an alternate. No discussion. Motion carried. Mr. Townsend was sworn in to 

begin his service and duties.  

Mr. Kent Bernier        yay Ms. Shawna McKean      yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yay Ms. Rita Purnell yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton   yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick   N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann  yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson yay 

Brachbill motioned to delegate plan reviews to provide/ approve projects to Centre Region 

Code. Dann seconded. The duties would include planning reviews. This would be a temporary 

delegation. With no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier        yay Ms. Shawna McKean      yay 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yay Ms. Rita Purnell yay 

Ms. Deb Cleeton   yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick   N/A 

Ms. Barbara Dann  yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  N/A 

Mr. Doug Johnson yay 

Bellefonte Elementary School Municipal Notification of Planned Land Development for Chapter 

102 Permit. No Council action is needed. 

Bid Opening for South Spring Street Streetscape Project - No motion necessary as this is a SEDA-

COG project (Opposite side of Dollar General) 

o John Nastase Construction: $194,981.74

o G&R Charles Excavating: $158,019.50

o Bowman Excavation: $199,608.25

o Glenn O Hawbaker: $293,508.00

o Midstate Paving: $202,127.25

o Enterra Sitework LLC: $257,421.75

o HRI INC: $263,375.50

XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

August 7, 2023 

Page 6 

Members may offer comments regarding various events and issues within the Borough. 

Ms. Purnell asked if there had been any follow-up with concerns regarding railroad safety in 

our Borough. Mr. Steward responded that there is some sensitive information that cannot be 

released – but that the Railroad Authority can say what the trains are carrying.  

Ms. Purnell also suggested that we update the website and the TV screen in the lobby of the 

Borough Building to better announce upcoming events. She also suggested we mention 

“Upcoming Events” at each meeting.  

Ms. Cleeton asked about the S Spring Street project start date. It was clarified that the project 

will likely start sometime in September, with a proposed completion date of before 

Thanksgiving. 

She also offered congratulations and thanks to the organizers and volunteers of the Arts & 

Crafts Fair. The Fair was a huge success!  

Mr. Brachbill invited the public to the opening of Happy Valley Short Stays. There will be a 

tour on August 17, from 12:00 pm-3:00 pm and 5:00 pm -8:00 pm.  

Mayor Johnson mentioned that he did some traveling this summer but it is always good to 

come home. He really appreciates the people he works with. 

Mr. Holderman is just happy to be at the meeting tonight. :) 

Mr. Johnson thanked Ms. Cleeton for her hard work and dedication to the Arts and Crafts Fair. 

He said the entertainment groups were fun to watch.  

Mr. Johnson also mentioned that he would like to move forward with the Climate Action 

Plan and the Environmental Advisory Board. He strongly encouraged Council members to 

discuss this at the next work session and get it on the agenda as an action item.  

Mr. Johnson also encouraged residents to check in with their local state legislators and 

representatives regarding support of House Bill 451 – which establishes the Tax-

Exempt Property Municipal Assistance Fund. This bill would help the Borough collect 

revenue for Borough use. 

Mr. Stewart thanked crews for finishing the Water Street Wall project before the Arts Fair. He 

commended the crew for their hard work. 

XII. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 9:21 p.m. 































































• 
Stover 
McGlaughlin 
Attorneys & Counselors at Law 

Bellefonte 

122 East High Street 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
T: 814 355 8235 
F: 814 355 130 4 

Please remit payment to Bellefonte Office 

July 15, 2023 

State College 

919 University Drive 
State College, PA 16801 
T: 814 2311850 
F: 814 23118 60 

Bellefonte Borough ACCOUNT NO. 12637.001 A 

c/o Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
Municipal Bldg. 

INVOICE NO. 165376 JWS 

236 W. Lamb Street 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 

Solicitor 

06/16/2023 

06/20/2023 

06/26/2023 

06/27/2023 

06/28/2023 

07/05/2023 

Fees through 07/15/2023 

Telephone conference with Ralph, et al. re: Weis; Emails with Attorney 
Gaines 

Emails with Ralph; Legal research re: nonconforming registration; 
Appear for Executive Session; Letter to Lucas 

Emails re: Weis Markets 

Emails with Attorney Gaines re: discovery, etc. 

Review Ambrose Heinz letter; Review Gaines Letter; Email to Ralph; 
Telephone call from Heinz 

Emails with Ralph Stewart; Review Seda-Cog Agreement; review 
Seda-COG Deed; Appear for executive session 

Please Detach and Return This Portion With Your Remittance 

Please Charge$ _ _ _ _ _ __ on the following: 

D Visa D MasterCard □Discover

�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�1�11 I I I 
Card Number Exp, Date (required) 

Card Holder Signature 

HOURS 

0.50 

2.00  

0.20  

0.20 

0.50  

1.80 

Amount Remitted: _____ _ 

Check No,: 

Statement Date: 

Statement No, 

Account No. 

------

07/15/2023

165376 

12637.001 



Bellefonte Borough 
ACCOUNT NO: 

Page: 2 
July 15, 2023 
12637-00lA 

165376 INVOICE NO. 
Solicitor 

07/06/2023 

07/07/2023 

07/10/2023 

07/11/2023 

07/13/2023 

Emails with Ralph Stewart; Order title search; Emails to Gina and 
Attorney Heinz 

Emails with R. Stewart and Attorney Heinz and Attorney Larrabee 

Telephone call from Attorney Levandoski; Email to Ralph and Don 

Email and telephone conference with Don; Telephone call from 
Attorney Dupuis; Email to Attorney Levandoski 

Emails; Review documents in re: Railroad Street Declaration of Taking 
FOR CURRENT SERVICES RENDERED 

RECAPITULATION 

HOURS RATE 
7.40 $185.00 

TOTAL 
$1,369.00 

TOTAL CURRENT CHARGES THROUGH 07/15/2023 

PRIOR MONTH BALANCE 

TOTAL BALANCE DUE 

0-30
2,035.00 

31-60
0.00

PAST DUE AMOUNTS 
61-90 91-120

0.00 0.00 

WE NOW ACCEPT PAYPAL. PAYMENTS CAN BE SENT TO 

INFO@NITTANYLA W.COM 

121-180
0.00 

PAYMENTS RECEIVED AFTER THE STATEMENT DATE WILL BE 

REFLECTED ON NEXT MONTH'S STATEMENT 

HOURS 

0.50  

0.20  

0.30  

0.60 

0.60 ; 

7.40 1,369.00 

1,369.00 

$666.00 

$2,035.00 

181+ 
0.00 



















































 
 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
Whereas, The Borough of Bellefonte congratulates the Bellefonte Area School District Boys’ Varsity Baseball Team  
 for becoming the 2023 PIAA Class 4A State Champions; and 
 

  Whereas, The Bellefonte Area School District Boys’ Varsity Baseball Team, The Red Raiders through hard work and  
    perseverance through 25 hard-fought games, became the 2023 PIAA Class 4A State Champions. The Red Raiders  
    take great pride in respecting their opponents and playing the game of baseball with class and dignity; and 

 
  Whereas, The demanding athletic competition requires high levels of skills, determination teamwork, scholastic    
    achievement, and focus on selfless commitment to others; and 

 
  Whereas, These 22 outstanding high school players: Logan Aviles, Josh Brown, Jacob Corman, Dominic Capperella,  
    Parker Capparelle, Alexander Ebeling, Nathan Fisher, Ryan Fraley, Isaac Gall, Triston Heckman, Nash Irwin,  
    Trevor Johnson, Braedyn Kormanic, Reese McCloskey, Felix Oquendo, Levi Purnell, Kenneth Squires, Caleb Stock,  
    Ethan Tomasacci, Peyton Vancas, and Mason Weaver have represented themselves, their families, their school, and  
    their community proudly; and 
 
  Whereas, the team is coached by Head Coach Jon Clark, with the assistance of Assistant Coaches Drew Bryan, Adam Gearhart, 
    and Rick Hall; and 

 
Now, therefore, I, Buddy Johnson, Mayor of Bellefonte, do hereby recognize Bellefonte Area School District Boys’ Varsity 
Baseball Team for its extraordinary achievements of becoming the 2023 PIAA Class 4A State Champions. We salute your 
hard work and wish you continued success in the upcoming season. 
 
I DO HEREBY set my hand and seal this 21st day of August 2023. 
         _________________________________________ 
                    Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 
                     Borough of Bellefonte 



1 

 
BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

JULY 2023 

 
 

HIGHTLIGHS 
 

• SPECIAL EVENTS :  Bellefonte Arts and Crafts Fair, Herbies Hometown Loop, 
National Night Out ( Giant Store with SPTP), Bike Patrol for PG Fireman’s parade 
and Carnival, Friday Night in the Fonte,  

•  Note Worthy Crime/incident:  Attempted Homicide- cleared by arrest 
• PA Attorney General’s Office:  Conducted an audit for the CHRIA ( criminal history 

intelligence act)  for the dissemination of protected personal information. 
• Personnel:  Injured officer on light duty, which is noted with an “*” in following 

pages information., BPD’s Intern completed  his summer internship,  Part Time 
officer is onboarded and began his field training  program.   

• Department focuses:  revamping our parking enforcement goals and strategies. 
Visibility and police presence by foot patrol, focusing on problem areas regarding 
traffic violations.  Developing a Less-than lethal weapons policy 
Training during working hours- CPR recertifications for entire Dept. without using 
overtime to do so.    
 

•  Conducted a speed/traffic study on South Potter St. using  All-Traffic Solutions 
program.   

• Chief and Detective attended monthly Chief’s of Police meeting, and the Montlys 
Criminal Investigator’s meeting 

 
 
      

 
 

 



2 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

TRAFFIC 

STOPS WARNINGS CITES 

PATROL HOURS 

VEHICLE FOOT FOCUSED 

OFFICER HRS SCHEDULED PTO OT HRS MEETINGS TRAINING 
TOTAL HRS 
WORKED 

3400 WEAVER 

3407 WITMER 

3408 NEIDEIGH 

3410 LYONS 

3411 WALTER 

3412 BROWER 

3416 LUSE 

3417 IGOE 

3421 HOLT 

3424 POLLOCK 

CALLS 

SUPPLEMENTS 

ASSISTS (STPD) 

CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 

NON-TRAFFIC CITES 

PARKING TICKETS 

ACCIDENT REPORTS 

WARRANTS ATTEMPTED 

WARRANTS SERVED 

302 WARRANTS SERVED 

PERSON STOP 

CRUISER MILEAGE 

1 – 3416 

2 – 3408/3421 

3 – 3407 

4 – 3411/3416 

5 – 3410 

6 – 3424 

7 – 3412 

8 – 3400 

BUSINESS CHECKS 

VACATION HOME CHECKS 



3 

 

OFFICER CALLS 
HRS 

AVAILABLE 
FOOT 

PATROL 
PATROL HRS 

ADMIN 
HRS 

  

3400 WEAVER        

3407 WITMER        

3408 NEIDEIGH        

3410 LYONS        

3411 WALTER        

3412 BROWER        

3416 LUSE        

3417 IGOE        

3421 HOLT        

3424 POLLOCK        

 
 

OFFICERS OVERTIME 

OFFICER COURT 
SHIFT 

COVERAGE 
HELD OVER CALLED OUT TRAINING 

REIMBURSED 
ASSIGNMENT 

TOTAL 

3400 WEAVER        

3407 WITMER        

3408 NEIDEIGH        

3410 LYONS        

3411 WALTER        

3412 BROWER        

3416 LUSE        

3417 IGOE        

3421 HOLT        

3424 POLLOCK        

 



July Parking Enforcement and Animal Control Report 

 

            

 

 

Total parking tickets issued:   143 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM: Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting August 21, 2023 

 
PLANNING: 

 
The Planning Commission meeting for August 14 was cancelled. The next meeting will be 
held on September 11, 2023 at 5 p.m. in Council Chambers to discuss zoning concerns.  
 
 

HARB: 
 
HARB met on Tuesday, August 8, 2023 and then, because of technical issues, the remainder 
of the meeting was rescheduled for August 15. The agenda, presentation, and meeting 
minutes are in your packet. Details on administrative approvals can be found on the HARB 
agenda. If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Recommended for approval/the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness: 
 
 384 E. Linn Street – exterior window and door replacement.  

 
Motion to approve project as presented, with an amendment that the rear door include the 
trim detail and colors that are used on the front windows of the house.  
 
 435 N. Spring Street - Add L-shaped porch to cover the front of entrance. Replace 

cement with new cement as base for porch. Posts to support a steel metal roof to 
match the garage roof. 

 
Motion to approve the porch as presented with an asphalt roof to match existing house roof.  

 
 469 E. Curtin Street – Replace existing windows with new wooden windows (same 

style/grid patterns), paint all trim work and doors, add gutters and downspouts, 
add deck to rear of the home and replace accent roof(s).  
 

Motion to approve replacement of windows with new wooden windows with same style and 
grid pattern, paint color schedule, and replace gutters and downspouts.  
 
Motion to approve deck at rear of house as presented, with the condition that it is a 
freestanding structure that is not anchored to the house.  
 
 



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

 
 

ZONING: 
 

Zoning Hearing Board 
 
There will be a Zoning Hearing Board on August 29, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. The Hearing is for an 
appeal to the determination made by the Zoning Officer for the property at 1304 Summit 
Drive. The applicant is appealing the determination that they can only rent out their short-
term rental for 138 days per calendar year.  
 
You can find more information in your packet, including the official Legal Notice, which has 
been posted at the property, and the Hearing Agenda.  
 
 
 

OCA UPDATES: 
 
The Safe Routes to Parks  
Jennilyn sent out a newsletter to all council members on 8/12/23. The newsletter included 
the mission of the Safe Routes to Parks initiative, as well as updates since the community 
engagement sessions. Council should receive a full report of the community engagement 
session next month. Safe Routes to Parks is hosting a community event on Sunday, August 
27, 1-4 p.m. on South Potter Street. There are lots of family-friendly activities planned and 
will be a wonderful event to highlight this corridor as a future rail-to-trail.  
 



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

 
 



AGENDA 

“VIRTUAL” HISTORICAL AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
DATE: AUGUST 8TH 2023 TIME: 8:30AM 

BOROUGH MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 236 W. LAMB STREET, BELLEFONTE 
 

 
Call to Order:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Sam McGinley, Chair Gay Dunne  
Megan Tooker Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Walt Schneider Amy Kelchner  
Mike Leakey   
Pat Long   
Maria Day   
Philip Ruth   

 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: June 12, 2023 meeting minutes  
 
Project Review and Public Comments:  
 
 384 E. Linn Street – exterior window and door replacement.  

o A representative from State College Design and Construction will be present to 
discuss the project.   
 

 435 N. Spring Street - Add L-shaped porch to cover the front of entrance. Replace 
cement with new cement as base for porch. Posts to support a steel metal roof to match 
the garage roof. 

o Theresa Reis, property owner, will be present to discuss the project.  
 

 469 E. Curtin Street – Owner is undertaking a complete interior and exterior renovation 
of the subject property. Requesting HARB approval to: replace existing windows with 
new wooden windows (same style/grid patterns), paint all trim work and doors, add 
gutters and downspouts, add deck to rear of the home and replace accent roof(s).  

o Link to application materials: 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy7
8m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0  
 HARB Application 
 HARB Presentation 
 Color Schedule for trim, porch, and window sash 
 Window worksheets (29 window replacements) 
 Window presentation (photos of all windows) 

o Tom Ventura, property owner, will be present to discuss the project.  
 
 
 

 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0


Administrative Approvals:  
 
 217 N. Allegheny Street (Verizon Building) – Exterior site upgrades and maintenance, 

including: repairs to existing doors and windows, repair and paint the existing cornice 
woodwork to match the existing, repointing brickwork as needed, etc. Windows will not 
be replaced as part of this COA. 
 

 214 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Bed & Breakfast) – mural design for the exterior 
shared wall of library and Bellefonte Bed & Breakfast. CCLHM Executive Director, 
Denise Sticha, has approved of the design.  
 

 251 N. Allegheny Street (Setaro) – Replace iron railing on front balcony to be period 
correct. Current railing was not original to house when built in 1879. Install roof finials 
that were originally on the house when built.  
 

 460 E. Linn Street (Taylor) – replace all gutters and downspouts, install leaf filter on 
gutters. Current gutters are K-style and will be replaced with K-style.  
 

 223 E. Curtin Street (Simplicity Bed & Breakfast) – 24” round wood sign, green and 
black to match house colors. Mounted to 4x4 black wood post (same as fence and light 
posts) and placed on the front yard, left side of property 
 

 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) - In-kind replacement of 
existing asphalt shingles, and gutters and downspouts. The South building (beside the 
parking lot) has three-tab asphalt shingles and the North building has architectural 
asphalt shingles. Roof shall be uniform with architectural shingles. All existing 'K"-
Gutters and rectangular downspouts shall be replaced with eggshell gutters and 
downspouts to match the existing, including soffits and facias.  
 

 
Information / Discussion Items: 
 128 W. Howard (Trinity UM Church) – gutter replacement update 

 
Old Business: 
 DBI Mural Project – Alex Hall from A H Public Spaces Consulting, LLC will be present 

to give updates on the mural project.  
 
New Business:  
 
Adjournment: 



 
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURE REVIEW BOARD 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 

Aug 8, 2023 - 8:30 a.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The FIRST MEETING of the August 8th, 2023, regular meeting of the Bellefonte 
Borough Historical Architecture Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. 
Members met virtually via Zoom.  
*This meeting was interrupted by a power outage. The second half of the meeting 
was rescheduled and members met to complete the meeting on 8/15. 
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:     Sam McGinley, Chair 

Walt Schneider 
Amy Kelchner  
Pat Long   
Gay Dunne 
Megan Tooker 
Mike Leakey 
Maria Day 
 

ABSENT:    Philip Ruth  
 
STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
 
GUESTS:    Kieron Cook 
    Tom Ventura 
    Theresa Reis 
    Alex Hall  
 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: None 
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: None  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: Schneider motioned to approve the minutes 
of the June 12th, 2023 meeting.  Long seconded. There was no discussion. Motion 
carried.   

  
Public Comment: None  
 
Project Review 

384 E. Linn Street – exterior window and door replacement. 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
August 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 
• Kieron Cook from State College Design and Construction was present to 

     discuss the project. 
 

Long motioned and Tooker seconded to approve the project as presented. 
Discussion included clarifications of the project details, including discussion 
about making the door a double wide, sliding glass door.  
 
The motion was amended to read: the rear door should include the trim detail 
from the front of the house. Roll Call vote. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
435 N. Spring Street - Add L-shaped porch to cover the front of entrance.  
• Theresa Reis, property owner, was present to discuss the project. 
• Replace cement with new cement as base for porch. Posts to support a steel metal 

roof to match the garage roof. 
• The construction company is Yoder Brothers  

 
Schneider motioned and seconded to approve the project as presented. 
Discussion included clarifications of the project details, including standing seam 
vs. metal roofing.  
 
Motion to approve the project as presented, with the change that the roof on the 
porch be an asphalt shingle to match the shingle on the house. Roll Call vote. 
The motion carried unanimously.  

 
 
MEETING PART 2 – AUGUST 15, 2023, to make up for internet connection during 
August 8th meeting.  
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The SECOND MEETING of the August 8th, 2023, regular meeting of the Bellefonte 
Borough Historical Architecture Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. 
on August 15, 2023. Members met virtually via Zoom.  
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:     Sam McGinley, Chair 

Walt Schneider 
Amy Kelchner  
Pat Long   
Gay Dunne  
Philip Ruth  

 
ABSENT:    Megan Tooker 

Mike Leakey 
Maria Day 

  
STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
  
GUESTS:    Tom Ventura 
    Alex Hall   



Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
August 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Project Review – (continued) 
 
469 E. Curtin Street – Owner is undertaking a complete interior and exterior 
renovation of the subject property.  
• Tom Ventura, property owner, was present to discuss the project. 
• Requesting HARB approval to:  

o replace existing windows with new wooden windows (same style/grid 
patterns) 

o paint all trim work and doors  
o add gutters and downspouts 
o add deck to rear of the home and replace accent roof(s) 

 
• Link to application materials: 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hb
ghc3hbc&dl=0 
 

Schneider motioned and Kelchner seconded to approve the project as presented. 
 
Dunne motioned to amend the motion to cover only the rehabilitation part of the 
project, and discuss the deck as a separate motion. Second by Ruth.  Motion to 
amend the motion carried with one Nay vote by Schneider. The deck will not be 
discussed in this presentation.  
 
Discussion included clarifications of the project details. The amended motion to 
approve the rehabilitation projects carried unanimously.  

 
Schneider motioned and Dunne seconded to approve the deck project as 
presented. Discussion included clarifications of the project details.  
 
Schneider then amended his motion to make the approval for the deck as a free-
standing structure. Dunne seconded the amended motion. The amended motion 
to approve the deck project carried unanimously.  

 
 
Administrative Approvals  

• 217 N. Allegheny Street (Verizon Building) – Exterior site upgrades and 
maintenance, including: repairs to existing doors and windows, repair and paint 
the existing cornice woodwork to match the existing, repointing brickwork as 
needed, etc. Windows will not be replaced as part of this COA. 
 

•  214 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Bed & Breakfast) – mural design for the 
exterior shared wall of library and Bellefonte Bed & Breakfast. CCLHM Executive 
Director, Denise Sticha, has approved of the design. 
 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hbghc3hbc&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hbghc3hbc&dl=0


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
August 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 
 

• 251 N. Allegheny Street (Setaro) – Replace iron railing on front balcony to be 
period correct. Current railing was not original to house when built in 1879. Install 
roof finials that were originally on the house when built. 
 

• 460 E. Linn Street (Taylor) – replace all gutters and downspouts, install leaf filter 
on gutters. Current gutters are K-style and will be replaced with K-style. 
 

• 223 E. Curtin Street (Simplicity Bed & Breakfast) – 24” round wood sign, green 
and black to match house colors. Mounted to 4x4 black wood post (same as 
fence and light posts) and placed on the front yard, left side of property 
 

• 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) - In-kind replacement of 
existing asphalt shingles, and gutters and downspouts. The South building 
(beside the parking lot) has three-tab asphalt shingles and the North building has 
architectural asphalt shingles. Roof shall be uniform with architectural shingles. 
All existing 'K"- Gutters and rectangular downspouts shall be replaced with 
eggshell gutters and downspouts to match the existing, including soffits and 
facias. 

 

Old Business:  

• DBI Mural Project – Alex Hall from A H Public Spaces Consulting, LLC was present 
to give updates on the mural project. 

o The project site is located at 123 S Allegheny Street  
o The life span of the project is expected to be around 25 years. 
o The 3-phase project is progressing on schedule and is slated to be 

completed in late 2023, weather pending. 
o There will be a dedication of the new mural upon completion. 
o 35 artists applied and 3 artists have been selected to move on to Phase II 
o They should get approval from the property owner in late August/early 

September and be ready to get approvals from the Borough at that point. 
o The mural committee is asking HARB board members to please keep 

information, especially the design, confidential, as the organizers would 
like the final design to be a surprise for the community.  

New Business: NONE   
 
Information/Discussion Items: 
• 128 W. Howard (Trinity UM Church) – gutter replacement update 

o The church removed their Half Rounds and replaced them with K Style 
o This issue was addressed – and the church is removing the K Style 

gutters and re-replacing them back to half rounds 
o Gina did notice that other properties in the area do have K Style gutters – 

and she would like to encourage board members to consider this issue. 
 

Adjournment: With no other business to come before HARB, the second half of this 
meeting adjourned at 9:18am.   



BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL 

REVIEW BOARD 
8:30 AM Tuesday August 8th 2023 “Virtual” Meeting 



Agenda Item 1

 Call to Order: 
 Attendance:
 Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: 
 Declaration of Conflict of Interest:   
 Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:
 Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: 
June 12th 2023 meeting minutes 



Project 1: 384 E. Linn Street 

Project Applicant: State College Design and Construction 
(on behalf of homeowner, Hester Blum)

Character Defining Features & Setting: 
• Building shape and roof features – Two-story frame gable front and 

wing 
• Openings – One-over-one double-hung wood sash with exterior storms; 

pointed windows in the attic; front door with sidelights
• Projections – Two-story projecting hexagonal bay on gable front; one-

story porch with shed roof; rear gabled ell with widely overhanging 
eaves

• Trim and Secondary Features – wood – bracketed cornices on bay and 
front porch; decorative detailing in the side gable ends   

• Materials and Craft Details – Stone foundation, frame structure with 
wood siding, trim, details and windows

• Setting – historic residential neighborhood with surrounding 
nineteenth and twentieth century dwellings.  Detached one-story, one-
car garage in rear with gable roof

Project Description:
New exterior door and window at rear of house. Both the window and 
door are to be selected and installed to match the wood of the existing 
doors and windows of the house. Replace sconce next to door. 





Project 2: 435 N. Spring Street 

Project Applicant: Theresa Reis, property owner

Character Defining Features & Setting: 
The main block of this two-story frame building has a side-gable 
roof with a front-facing gabled wall dormer.  Beneath the dormer 
is a two-story hexagonal bay.  The house stands on a stone 
foundation, is clad in what appears to be asbestos shake, and has 
an asphalt shingled roof.  A series of porches and bays project 
from the building’s two-story rear ell.  The majority of the 
building’s window openings contain one-over-one double-hung 
sash that are not original to the building; however, some of the 
openings still contain their original windows, including a four-pane 
pointed arch window in the front gable, a multi-lite window in a 
side addition, etc.  A one-story porch formerly wrapped the north 
and east sides of the house, but has been removed.  Nearby 
buildings are contributing examples of late 19th and early 20th 
century residential architecture. 

Project Description:
Add L-shaped porch to cover the front of entrance. Replace 
cement with new cement as base for porch. Posts to support a 
steel metal roof to match the garage roof. 







Project 3: 469 E. Curtin Street

Project Applicant: Tom Ventura, property owner

Character Defining Features & Setting: Built 1930
Witter, Harry G. & Anna P. House
Spanish colonial; Mission Style
Hip roof, brick dormer cuts thru eave, curved parapet
Exterior Walls brick, running bond
Other: brick panel trim, brick sills, windows 8/1 double-hung
Bays: 3; Stories : 2
Sears House 1926 "The Alhambra". Original house on lots 469/457 E. 
Curtin

Project Description:
Owner is undertaking a complete interior and exterior renovation of 
the subject property. Requesting HARB approval to: replace existing 
windows with new wooden windows (same style/grid patterns), paint 
all trim work and doors, add gutters and downspouts, add deck to rear 
of the home and replace accent roof(s). 
o Link to application materials: 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h
9e4284suy78m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0 

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/mpavhkhuhizem2ic7siaa/h?rlkey=7h9e4284suy78m6hblghc3hbc&dl=0


Agenda Item 3: Administrative Approvals
 217 N. Allegheny Street (Verizon Building) – Exterior site upgrades and maintenance, including: repairs to existing doors and windows, 

repair and paint the existing cornice woodwork to match the existing, repointing brickwork as needed, etc. Windows will not be replaced as 
part of this COA.

 214 N. Allegheny Street (Bellefonte Bed & Breakfast) – mural design for the exterior shared wall of library and Bellefonte Bed & 
Breakfast. CCLHM Executive Director, Denise Sticha, has approved of the design. 

 251 N. Allegheny Street (Setaro) – Replace iron railing on front balcony to be period correct. Current railing was not original to house when 
built in 1879. Install roof finials that were originally on the house when built. 

 460 E. Linn Street (Taylor) – Replace all gutters and downspouts, install leaf filter on gutters. Current gutters are K-style and will be 
replaced with K-style. 

 223 E. Curtin Street (Simplicity Bed & Breakfast) – 24” round wood sign, green and black to match house colors. Mounted to 4x4 black 
wood post (same as fence and light posts) and placed on the front yard, left side of property

 203 N. Spring Street (Bellefonte Presbyterian Church) - In-kind replacement of existing asphalt shingles, and gutters and downspouts. The 
South building (beside the parking lot) has three-tab asphalt shingles and the North building has architectural asphalt shingles. Roof shall be 
uniform with architectural shingles. All existing 'K"-Gutters and rectangular downspouts shall be replaced with eggshell gutters and 
downspouts to match the existing, including soffits and facias. 



Agenda Item 4

 Information/Discussion Items:
 128 W. Howard (Trinity UM Church) – gutter replacements update. 

 Old Business:

 New Business: 

 Adjournment:



LEGAL 
NOTICE 

 
The Bellefonte Borough Zoning Hearing Board will hold a 
public hearing on Tuesday, August 29, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in 
Council Chambers, 236 W. Lamb St, Bellefonte.  All interested 
persons are invited to attend.  The following item will be 
considered:  
 

Appeal the determination of the Zoning Officer 
to operate a nonconforming use (short-term 
rental) in the R-1 Suburban Residential District 
for a maximum of 138 days per year.  
 
Based on the provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance, Chapter 575, Article XIII: 
Supplemental Regulations, Section 64.1: short-
term rentals.  

 
More information may be obtained at the Borough office.  If 
you are a person with a disability and wish to attend this 
hearing and require an auxiliary aid, service, or other 
accommodation to participate in the proceedings, please call 
355-1501 to discuss how your needs may be best 
accommodated. 



 

Agenda 
Zoning Hearing Board  

Variance Request 
 

Tuesday, August 29th, 2023 @ 5:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers, 236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA   16823 

 Call to Order 
 

 Roll Call and Declaration of Quorum 
 
 Chairperson’s Statement – Reason for Hearing  

 
1. Applicant:  

Lisa Drobka, Robin Nest LLC 
 
1304 Summit Drive, Bellefonte PA 16823 
tax parcel nos. 32-207-,009-,0000- 
 
Reason to appeal the determination made by the Zoning Officer:  
The applicant is appealing the determination made by the Zoning Officer 
based on the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance Chapter 575-64.1: 
Short-term rentals. Specifically, letter E (14), which states: 

Short-term rental properties operating in the R-1 and R-2 
residential districts may be rented out for a maximum of 60 nights 
per year. Any current short-term rental property owner that can 
document the number of nights that they have been renting in their 
highest year beyond 60 nights will be granted a certificate of 
nonconformity for the additional nights beyond that granted for 
their nonconforming use of the property for a short-term rental. 

 
 Identification of People Wishing to be Heard 
 
 Swearing in of People Giving Testimony 

 
 Hearing 

ZHB Members: 
   Mark Johnson, chair 
   David Provan 
   Lanny King 
   William Luther 
   Charles Cox  
 
Alternate Members: 
   N/A 
 
Solicitor: 
  William Tressler 
    
    



 

 
 

To: Council 

From: Ralph 

Date: August 18, 2023 

Subject: Borough Manager’s Report – July 2023 
 
Operations/Staff Updates: 

➢ Building and property - Armory building – elevator shaft contractor is onsite starting 

the project.  We will have a project meeting every two weeks.  The IT consultant (who 

handles the current borough building IT) is doing all of the planning work to integrate 

the Armory with the existing building.  Various other smaller projects are in phases of 

completion.    

➢ Personnel – We have some openings at the Wastewater Treatment Plant due to 

someone leaving and a retirement. We are going through the steps to fill these 

openings.   

➢ Streets – Crews are working on storm drain repairs.  

➢ Streets - Penn DoT SR 150, South Water Street Wall Project – This project was 

completed in early August.     

➢ Streets - Traffic Light at Parkview and Zion – Our engineer is nearly complete with survey 

work and has submitted a grant application.  Penn DoT is planning to have a meeting 

with the School District related to the planned elementary school along Airport Road.  

This may have an impact on our design.   

➢ Borough Authority Water/Wastewater – the borough authority held a work session in July 

to discuss design concepts for the Big Spring cover.  The Authority does not want to see 

the pumphouse view blocked by the structure for a hard shell cover.  Discussions are 

continuing.  The draft meeting minutes of the August 15 meeting will be the August 21st 

meeting materials.  



     

➢ Wastewater – The Plant is facing a number of issues – personnel shortages due to non-

work-related injuries, vacancies, equipment failures and long lead times for replacement 

parts.  I have attaches notes presented to the Authority by Frank Noll, WWTP 

Superintendent.    

➢ Water – I have attached notes presented to the Authority by Matt Auman, our Public 

Works Superintendent.   

➢ Corning line break on June 28th – the staff held an After-Action Review to discuss the 

event so that improvements in the operations/processes can be implemented.       

➢ Parks - Stage at Talleyrand/performance center – We recently received the draft 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that will cover the responsibilities of the 

borough and the Stage group.  This will be developed by Council.   

➢ Parks - Kepler Pool at Governors Park/Nittany Valley Rec. Authority – The group is 

getting ready to go out to bid for the construction/renovation work. 

➢ Parks – seasonal personnel are grass-cutting, tree trimming, dead tree removing, 

and performing general maintenance  

➢ Refuse – personnel changes with inter-department moves.  Crews recently trained 

on new mulch bagging /silt sock machine for Musser Lane compost facility.     

➢ Former National Guard Armory property along Zion Road – Don and I met with the 

owner recently. Due to extremely high costs for renovating the buildings, he has 

put a hold on the brewery project.  He has not made a final determination yet.   

➢ Waterfront development – According to an article, it looks like the Spring of 2024 at 

the earliest.   

➢ PA Highlands Community College (PHCC) – The PHCC is still very much interested 

in getting established in Bellefonte/Centre County.  They are trying to work with 

Weis for space in the former grocery store building on East Bishop Street.  If that 

doesn’t work, they will keep looking.   

➢ SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority (JRA) RR Spur along Potter Street – council has 

approved the purchase of the spur with the rail conditional upon having an 

agreement with Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society (BHRS) regarding access and 

use of the spur.   

 

 



 

  

July  Meetings/Activities Attended 

1 ➢  

2 ➢  

3 ➢  

4 ➢ Holiday  

5 ➢ Department head meeting 
➢ Council work session and business meeting  

6 ➢ Staff meeting  
➢ Meeting with AFSMC representative  

7 ➢ Armory elevator pre-construction meeting  

8 ➢  
9 ➢  

10 ➢ Vacation  

11 ➢   Vacation  

12 ➢   Vacation  
13 ➢ Vacation  

14 ➢   Vacation  

15 ➢  

16 ➢  

17 ➢ Department head meeting 
➢ Council work session and business meeting  

18 ➢   Staff meeting 
➢   Authority work session – Big Spring cover project  

19 ➢  

20 ➢ Vacation  

21 ➢ Meeting with Water/wastewater engineer 
➢ Meeting to discuss zoning projects  

22 ➢  

23 ➢  

24 ➢  

25 ➢   Meeting with Armory building contractor/vendor   

26 ➢   Meeting with member of Spring Creek Watershed Commission  
➢   Senator Dush citation ceremony – Macy Neideigh  

27 ➢   Sick day  

28 ➢   Meeting with County Administrator – plans for former Centre Crest     
property  

29 ➢  

30 ➢  

31 ➢ Meeting with rep of Spring Creek Watershed Commission  

 
 
 
 



Activities 
Work session and Council Agenda formatting and preparation 

Agenda/Meeting preparation and follow up, coordinate with staff – directives, policy 
questions  

Unscheduled, informal, meetings, calls, emails to/from staff – Department day-to-day 
operations  

Correspondence – elected, fellow staff, residents, business owners, other government 
staff, realtors, customers, etc. via emails, phone calls, letters  

Draft meeting minutes review  
Armory building – focused on getting the elevator installed.  

 



Bellefonte Borough Authority Meeting July 18th 2023 WWTP Report 
Bulk Water sales for the month of June were approx. 684,640 gals. 

6/1/23 – Purchased and installed a 3rd portable A/C unit for the power distribution room. * * 
Finished spreading of 117 wet tons of biosolids on field #1 of the Spicer farm. 

6/2/23 – Chris Roelke from B & L at the plant for approximately 6 hrs. to review probe data and 
analysis results. Plant walkthrough to determine new sampling locations tied to ammonia issue. 

6/5/23 – E.Q. digester blower #2 failed forcing the use of the old E.Q. blowers to feed air to D2 
and D3 digesters. Blower motor is fried and wiring will need replaced from unit to breaker box. 
Blower motor picked up 6/12/23 by EMS.   * Biocarb pumps both failed and had to pump 
product into a tote to drip feed. Martz Tech. in the following day and got back in service. 

6/8/23 – Case loader taken to Groff tractor for bucket cylinder repair. One cylinder too bad for 
repair and will need ordered. 

6/9 thru 6/12 – BNR filter discharge tank full of sand and maintenance 2 days of lowering sand 
level and a day trying to clear sand at the discharge end of the line. 

6/13/23 – Jet pump in the North activated sludge swing zone died and is OOS. 

6/15/23 – Chris Roelke from B & L at the plant for almost 5 hrs. Touched on TRE (Toxicity 
Reduction Evaluation) report, BNR sand tank evaluation plus the removal of sand from 400 feet 
of 8” discharge line and the 3 jet pumps that are OOS in the activated sludge tanks. 

6/16/23 – Received the new scissor lift that had been a safety committee request. 

6/23/23 – Stitzer crane service at the plant to pull jet pumps for inspection by a field service 
tech from Riordon Materials. Only able to pull units up from the North clarifier and found 
impellers excessively worn and motor shot on one. Repaired one with the only spare impeller 
on site. Can only suspect we have the same issues on the South unit. 

6/26/23 – Complete Biomag process shutdown from 3:30 am to 7:45 am. Mag drum VFD failure 
tripped the MCC feeding power to the system.   * Jet pump failure occurred on the South swing 
zone area. OOS. New replacement pumps quote received with a 16-18 week lead time. 

6/27/23 – Shut down the Leibert A/C unit in the power room. Contacted Allied Mech. who has a 
5 ton portable unit that is available for set up on a loaner program. 

6/28/23 – VFD installed for the Mag drum.    * May eDMR submitted to DEP with two permit 
violations.   

 





Bellefonte Borough Authority Meeting August 15th 2023 WWTP 

Report 

Bulk Water sales for the month of July were approx. 314,200 gals. 

7/3/23 – Received notice of his resignation from one of our plant operators.    – Submitted the 

plants 4th of 4 required passing WET tests along with the TRE (Toxicity Reduction Evaluation).      

Maintenance installed repaired E.Q. digester blower motor. 

7/7/23 – Head of Maintenance placed on light duty for at least a month (shoulder).    – Allied 

mechanical installed a portable 5 ton A/C unit in the power control room to assist the 3 small 

portable units in use. 

7/11/23 – Roller bearing failure occurred on the belt thickener. Repaired with used one from 

storage. 

7/13/23 – BioMag system shutdown for approx. 6 hours. Martz came and replaced a damaged 

Ethernet cable connection. 

7/14/23 – EMS in to make wiring connections at the repaired E.Q. digester blower motor. 

Found that the VFD will need replaced. 

7/18/23 – Chris Roelke from B & L on site to review analysis numbers and a visual inspection of 

the A.S. units. Reviewed jet pump issues and the information gathered so far for repairs or 

replacement. 

7/20/23 – EMS in to conduct a vibration analysis on the E.Q. digester blower that’s operational.    

After consulting with Chris @ B & L, the scheduled three week sampling procedure for our 

NPDES permitting has been halted due to not operating under normal conditions. 

7/21/23 – Informed by a plant operator that he will be off with a back injury for the unforeseen 

future leaving the plant with only 3 assigned operators. 

7/24/23 – Maintenance installed a coupling bracket with added weights to try to diminish the 

released air from the vacated area of the pulled jet pump. 

7/25/23 – Violation letter sent to one of our industrial users for violation of their lead limits.        

– Jet pump in the south A.S. anoxic zone went OOS.    – Maintenance employee, Robbie Nichols, 

attended the required Biosolids Land Application training in Harrisburg.( 25th & 26th) 

7/26/23 – Submitted June eDMR to DEP with 3 violations. 

7/27/23 – Meeting @ 8:00am DEP WQS, Chris Roelke, myself and Shannon. Review and 

discussion of ammonia violations and projected solutions. Inspection/tour to see the problems 

at the clarifiers and view the pulled impeller showing probable cavitation issues. Spot checking 

of D.O. readings around the clarifier zones completed by Chris & SS.  





 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  COUNCIL 

FROM:  DON H 

SUBJECT: REPORT ON VARIOUS ITEMS 

DATE:  AUGUST 21, 2023 

CC:    

The following are updates on various reportable items: 
 

• We held our first construction meeting on the Armory elevator project.  We 
received a tentative schedule which reflects completion in late December 
2023. 

• We are awaiting signatures to complete and record the Land Development 
Plan for Musser Lane.  Once received, we’ll begin to look at development 
of a new building structure; 

• We had a follow-up meeting with Pennoni Associations regarding the 
Parkview Heights Stormwater Project.  They are going to make a 
modification to the RFP reflecting the change not to go behind the Teener 
League Field.  Bid proposals will be read aloud at the September 5th 
Council meeting; 

• The Spring Street Streetscape Project (CDBG) bids were opened at the 
last meeting.  SEDA-COG, in review of the bids found that the low-bidder’s 
package was not complete.  We will have a recommendation in the 
Council packet to conditionally approve the proposal suggested by our 
Solicitor after his review. 

• Julie and I met with representatives of the Centre County Recycling & 
Refuse Authority to discuss the $2,500 beautification grant for the 
peninsula.  The funds and work are required to be completed by 
December 31, 2023. 

• We filled a vacant position at the WWTP for an Operator.  We are still 
short-staffed as we have an individual out on FMLA. 

• The Public Works and Borough staff completed most of the action items 
from the Talleyrand Park Committee’s spring walkthrough.  This included 
replacing a number of caps on the stone wall, removing a few dead pine 
trees next to the Train Station, painting the Gazabo.  We are looking for 
volunteers to remove the english ivy. 

• 2023 Street paving should occur prior to the end of September. 
• I met with a few of the NVJRA members regarding the grants they 

received for the Kepler Pool renovations.  They will be administering five 



2 

separate grants.  They are projecting the project goes out to bid late fall 
(after approval) and award in early 2024.  They are not anticipating 
completion of the work until late summer 2024.  They asked to use 
Borough Council Chambers for periodic meetings and some small filing 
space to maintain their grant files.  We are working to help accommodate 
them with their requests.  

• I am estimating approximately $150K left in the Governor’s Park Baseball 
Field grant remaining.  Meetings are being set-up to establish where the 
remaining funds would be best utilized. 



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

Municipal Update 

2nd Quarter 2023 

January 1 – June 30 

  

Ambulance Incidents; 

 Total Responses 

o Emergency     909 total (2022 = 876, 2019 = 1040)  

 Transported    684 

 No Patient, Refusal   93 

 Lift Assist    48 

 Deceased    16 

 Cancelled    49 

 Fire/Police Standbys   17 

o Non-Emergency    2 total    

 

 By Municipality;   2023   2022   2019  

o Bellefonte Borough  259 28%  245 28%  379 36% 

o Spring Township  184 20%    160 18%  148 14% 

o Benner Township  144 16%  143 16%  150 14% 

o Boggs Township  121   13%  105 12%   104 10% 

o Milesburg Borough    85   9%    69   8%  102 10% 

o Union Township    40   4%    38   4%    36   4% 

o Howard Township    17   2%    27   3%     16   2% 

o Marion Township      14    2%    20    2%    18   2% 

o Unionville Borough        6   1%    10   1%      2 <1%  

o Huston Township        3 <1%      2 <1%      0  

o Mutual Aid     36   4%    57   7%     85   8%  

 

Staffing; 

 Career Personnel    14,843 hrs 

 Volunteer Personnel         204 hrs 

 

Fleet Information: 

Unit #  Vehicle    Mileage  Replacement 

 Amb-26-1 2010 Freightliner Ambulance  217,670 miles  2029 

 Amb-26-2 2018 Freightliner Ambulance    94,045 miles  2033  

 Amb-26-3 2019 MB Sprinter Ambulance    55,615 miles  2031 

 Van-26-1 2014 Ford Para-Transit Van             107,490 miles  2026 

 Van-26-2 2009 Ford Para-Transit Van  205,524 miles  2023  

 Van-26-3 2017 Dodge Para-Transit Van   74,022 miles  2029 

 Utility-26-1 2005 Ford F-350 MCI/Utility    92,458 miles   



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

2023 Municipal Funding – Received (YTD as of 7/20/23) 

 Townships:    2023    2022 

o Howard   $4,060  0.50 mill (+) $1,538  0.19 mill 

o Union   $14,000 0.50 mill (+) $10,000 0.35 mill 

o Huston   $     266 0.50 mill (=) $     266 0.50 mill  

o Boggs   $23,100 0.40 mill (-) $28,700 0.50 mill  

o Benner   $14,000 0.22 mill (=) $14,000 0.22 mill  

o Spring 

o Marion 

 Boroughs: 

o Milesburg  $  6,100 0.42 mill (+) $  5,710 0.40 mill 

o Bellefonte (partial) $24,037 0.25 mill (=) $25,694 0.25 mill 

o Unionville    

 

2023 Municipal Funding Utilization – (YTD as of 7/20/23) 

 $10,000 Ambulance Purchase, partial cost, 2010 Freightliner/Horton, Amb 26-1 

 $  1,073 Fuel, vehicle (2 week invoice) 

 $  1,514 Roof replacement loan payment x2 

 $     678 Worker’s Comp premium, x1 pay period 

 $     409 Utility – electric x1 month 

 $  2,049 Equipment/supplies - inverter replacement, O2 & cylinder hydro testing, 

                        radio batteries 

 $13,094 Payroll 

 $14,431 Insurance – liability, property, vehicle, portable equipment, umbrella – (6 month) 

 $  1,100           Equipment – portable suction unit x1 

 $  3,323           Vinyl graphics/lettering on new ambulance, partial cost 

 $  9,606 Litter (3) replacement, annual financing #3 of 4 payments 

 $  1,632 Ambulance Loan payment x1, Freightliner Amb 26-2 

 $  1,039 Ambulance Loan payment x1, Sprinter Amb 26-3 

 $59,948 Total 

 

 $25,645 Balance 

 

 

 

 



 

NOTES: BELLEFONTE ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD JULY 2023 

I. Only one meeting held 
A. The July 26, 2023 EAB meeting was cancelled due to multiple conflicts 

II. Climate Action Plan Accomplishments 
A. We are going through our notes since September 2020 when the Climate 
Action Plan was passed to compile a list of all of the sustainability 
accomplishments that have be achieved by the borough community and 
government. 
B. Where appropriate, we are also listing the collaborators in each of these 
projects 

III. Web and media Sustainability design options from 2022 
Sustainability Project 

A. The review of these options was postponed because Ilona Ballreich had a 
last-minute mandatory meeting at PSU.  This will be put back on the table at a 
later date. 

IV. Other programs being planned 
A. Climate Action Plan Presentation to the Public 

1. This was the most educational program requested by the Sustainability 
Survey Respondents. 
2. DBI has tentatively agreed to allow us to use the Springboard site for this 
presentation on Saturday, September 16 from 10:00 to 11:30 am. (Aside note: 
Kathleen Ammon has been hired as the new Executive Director of DBI. She started 
on July 24).  
3. We are checking with DBI to see if this presentation can be done as a 
hybrid in person and on Zoom. If we can, then we will record it on Zoom so that 
we can also post it to the website. 
4. Don is updating our prior PowerPoint presentations using the data created 
on the accomplishments that have occurred since passage of the CAP in 2020. 
This revision will be used for this presentation. 

B. Community Composting at Musser Lane – Don said that this public event 
tentatively scheduled for Saturday, October 7 at 10 am.  He believes that the bags 
will have arrived and the staff will have had time to train using the new bagging 
operation by that time. 



 

NOTES: BELLEFONTE ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD JULY 2023 

C. Stormwater Mitigation – No update due to Ilona Ballreich not being able to 
attend this meeting.  At the June meeting, Ilona said she is waiting to hear back 
from Matt Royer, the professor who has agreed to do the program.  We might also 
do a stormwater mitigation show and tell using the Parkview Heights project that 
is ready to go out for bid. 
D. Pollinator Education program – Gay Dunne contacted the Ford’s to see if 
they or someone with expertise in creating and maintain pollinating habitats can 
do an educational program for us. 

V. PMS Sustainability Designation 
A. We received an email from the Pennsylvania Municipal League. They are 
one of the two partners that oversee the Sustainable PA program.  The other 
partner is Sustainable Pittsburgh regarding social equity.  This item has been 
placed the EAB for future discussion. 

VI. Next meetings 
A. August 9 
B. August 23 
C. September 13 



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH WATER AUTHORITY  
MEETING MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING 

August 15, 2023 – 6 p.m. 
236 West Lamb Street 
Bellefonte, PA  16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
The meeting was called to order August 15, 2023 at 6 p.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL  Authority members present:     
   Mr. Joe Beigle  
   Mr. Greg Brown 
   Mr. Jon Eaton  
   Mr. Joe Falcone  
   Mr. Frank (Buddy) Halderman 
   Mr. Doug Johnson  
   Mr. Mike Schmidt 
 
                            Staff      

Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
   Mr. Frank Noll, WWTP Superintendent 
   Mr. Shannon Struble, WWTP Assistant Superintendent 
   Mr. Matt Auman, Public Works Superintendent 
   Ms. Julie Brooks, Public Works Assistant Superintendent  
 
  Engineer:  Chris Roelke, B & L  
    
      Guests 
   Randy Brachbill 

Brian Chilton 
Kevin Abbey 

  ________________________        
 
MINUTES  
A motion was made by Johnson and seconded by Eaton to approve the minutes from June 14, 
2023. No discussion. Motion carried.  
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA  
NONE 
 

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Authority 
August 15, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS - ORAL 
Mr. Stewart introduced Brian Chilton, structural engineer, who will be working on the Big 
Spring Cover Project. He also introduced Chris Roelke with Barton and Loguidice, who was also 
present to discuss the Cover Project.  
 
COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 
Letter from Glenn O Hawbaker - College Township Planning Commission, the Summit Park 
(Upper end of Corning Property) Subdivision Plan 
o Rezoning and Subdivision of 11 lots 
o The Subdivision will be serviced by College Township Water.  The Authority directed Mr. 

Stewart to check with the solicitor as to service territory issues.   
 
FINANCIALS 
Budget v. Actual May 2023 

 
Budget v. Actual June 2023 
 

There was no motion to approve the financial report. 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 
Chris offered several updates for June and July.  
 
SEWER REPORT (Superintendent) 
The Superintended highlighted the details of various projects and repairs completed in June and 
July. 
There was an extensive discussion regarding repair details and keeping equipment current and up 
to date. 
  
WATER REPORT 
Details were offered regarding projects and repairs completed in June and July. 
 
OLD BUSINESS    
Work Session held on July 18, Big Spring Cover Project  
o Authority does not want to block the view of the pumphouse 
o Authority wants a shallow pond on top of a hard shell cover  
o Design concepts are being considered  
o Top design concepts will be discussed with PA DEP for permit approval  feasibility  

  
Sewer line easement encroachment near 1201 Pine Circle, Parkview Heights 
o All the work completed or being completed has been done without permits. 
o A retaining wall has been built over the sewer line easement   

 



Bellefonte Borough Authority 
August 15, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

Motioned and seconded to have the property owner remove the wall within 60 days and 
restore the easement to its original condition, to the satisfaction of Bellefonte Borough 
Authority solicitor. Motion carried.    

Logan Greene Water Lines warranty 
o Berks Homes is the owner/developer – Able Construction is the contractor.  The issue is being 

addressed by the solicitor  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Daily Water Withdrawal Report June 2023 

 
Daily Water Withdrawal Report July 2023 
 
Spring-Benner-Walker Area Joint Authority May 8th – July 10th Meeting Minutes 

There was a discussion regarding remaining capacity at the WWTP and the length of time for 
build out.   

 
Corning Line break in July 

The Authority looked at the entire situation and determined strengths and weaknesses and how 
to better handle a similar situation should another break happen in the future.  

 
DISCUSSION 
Spring Creek Watershed Commission Presentation - Randy Brachbill and Kevin Abby 
discussed details regarding the last meeting of the Spring Creek Watershed 
o 2024 budget discussion 
o There is an increase from 10 cents to 15 cents (this is the first increase since 2008) 
o For Bellefonte Borough – in the 2024 budget – the additional nickel will mean an increase 

from $615 to $915 as the yearly contribution to the Commission. 
o A goal for 2024 is to get better organized with the Watershed Municipalities to complete 

projects that cross municipal lines (water/sewer etc)  
o The group is working on a Watershed Stewardship Plan that will benefit all entities  – being 

a facilitator among all the municipalities (helping to facilitate collaboration for projects) 
o 2024 budget - $24,000 for the fiscal year 
o Total annual contribution from all 12 members/municipalities is $12,235 (Bellefonte 

Borough’s current contribution is $615/year) 
o A brief history of the Watershed Commission was discussed. The Commission was 

established by Centre County 25 years ago, and 15 years ago the Commission was turned over 
to 12 area municipalities. It is a collaboration of the following 12 municipalities and 
townships: 
 Milesburg, Bellefonte Borough, Spring, Benner, Walker, Potter townships, State 

College Borough, Harris, College, Halfmoon, Ferguson and Patton townships  
 

Carrier Fluid Pump at WWTP – funding discussion, design discussion 
o It was agreed that the Authority needs to continue to move forward with the planning and of 

this project. 
 



Bellefonte Borough Authority 
August 15, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 
 
Blue Triton water sales from Penn Eagle Industrial Park – Water filling station 
o Trying to establish a water filling station at Penn Eagle 
o There needs to be an agreement as the volume of water is substantial 
o The infrastructure for a filling station still exists underground 
o It was agreed that the Authority will move forward with this project. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Eaton motioned and Beigle seconded to adjourn tonight’s meeting. No discussion. Motion carried. 
The meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm. 
 



Centre County Library & Historical Museum Board of Trustees Meeting 
Thursday, May 25, 2023 

Hybrid Meeting 
6:30 pm 

 
Trustees Present: Deborah Cleeton, Carl Inglesby, Kathleen Gomez, Vickie Barnett, Bryce 
Taylor, Pam McCloskey 
 
Trustees Excused: Lindsey Kurtz 
 
Staff Present: Michele Reese, Nicholas Struble 
 
Guests Present:  
 
Call to Order: Carl Inglesby, President, called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 
 
Public Comments and Correspondence: Nothing to report. 
 
Consent Agenda: Cleeton made a motion to approve the minutes of March 23, 2023. 
Seconded by Taylor. Motion carried.Cleeton made a motion to approve the Director’s 
March/April Operations Report.   Seconded by Barnett. Motion carried. 
 

The minutes of the March 23, 2023 Centre County Library & Historical Museum Board of 
Trustees Meeting were approved. 
The March/April Operations Report was approved. 

 
Finance Report and Investment Summary: Reese stated that everything was on track with 
expenses and investments. Reese reviewed the investment report from April stating that funds 
had been transferred from the Woods Fund to pay for the blinds and the porch project.  
Inglesby asked about the Municipality donations and how they were tracking. Reese stated the 
donations are coming in at the same schedule as past years. Cleeton asked if there was a 
determination letter that was sent out to the municipalities stating the amount we were 
requesting. McCloskey stated that she believes Sticha compiles information regarding library 
cards and library usage in the donation request letters.  Taylor made a motion to approve the 
Finance Report and Investment Summary.  Seconded by Cleeton.  Motion carried. 
 
New Business: 
 
ERTC- Employee Retention Tax Credit - Reese gave an update on the credit. Form 941X has 
been completed for the 1st-4th quarters of 2020 and the 1st and 3rd quarters of 2021. The 
amount that we are to receive is $270,379.16. The credit may be received six months to a year 
from now and may be paid out in the quarterly credit amount or annual sum. Reese stated that 
we do have an invoice due to First NonProfit for 10% of the credit amount. This invoice is due 
once we have received the credit in full. 
 
 



2023 Municipal visits:  Reese stated that Sticha had attended the Bellefonte Borough meeting 
as well as the Centre Hall Township meeting in April and received a Proclamation certificate for 
both the Bellefonte and Centre Hall branches. No other schedules have been discussed for 
attending additional municipality meetings. Barnett stated that she is concerned about 
approaching Spring Township for more income. Inglesby stated that he was not sure if Sitcha 
would be asking for an increase in donation or if it would be more of an informative visit. 
Cleeton had asked if there was a formula in determining the amount of money that is 
requested by each municipality. Reese stated that she was unsure if there was a determination 
rate and that the letter informs the municipalities about the branches and the Bookmobile. 
Further discussion was held regarding the donation letters. 
 
 
Committee Reports: 
 
Finance:  Cleeton reported that the finance committee met with Kristin Coombs and her Staff 
on April 5, 2023. The committee agreed to keep the principal protected funds at approximately 
$100,000 available in each of those funds for upcoming projects. Recommended that the 
current asset allocation is kept as is. For the two income accounts, the recommendation was to 
change from balance to growth by increasing the equity to Bond ratio from 55/45 to 65/35. 
Cleeton asked if the committee was comfortable with that if the Board needed to approve it. 
Discussion was held regarding the change. The finance committee also met with FNB Tony 
Moist and Gavin Howe on May 2, 2023. They stated no distributions and none anticipated. They 
recommended moving our stock allocation to 45% of the fund and adding high quality bonds. 
They stated that we needed to continue to be conservative at this time due to the issue 
regarding the debt ceiling and what will happen. Taylor stated that a discussion was held 
regarding changes but no approval was given to either FNB or Coombs to make any changes. 
The Finance committee will be meeting with FNB again in the Fall. Taylor stated that the Board 
should table any changes until the July meeting. Taylor made a motion to table any changes at 
this time. Seconded by Gomez. Motion carried. Reese reported that the auditor Paul Link was 
in on May 4th to work on the audit. Mr Link  is still working on the audit and has a few 
questions regarding the fixed assets. His calculations do not match ARO’s. Reese has reached 
out to ARO regarding the information and is waiting for a response. 
 
Personnel: Nothing to report. 
 
Property:  
 
Museum project- Inglesby reported that the Property Committee met with State College Design 
to look at the porch. He stated that samples were taken for the new pieces, discussed the 
drainage field and the closing of the sidewalks during the construction of the porch. The project 
will start at the end of July and should be completed within 90 days. Reese informed the Board 
that the blinds were installed on the 15th of May in the administrative side of the Museum. 
Reese asked for a quote for the remaining windows in the building. Inglesby stated that while 
Cole was looking at the other windows he discovered that one of the shutters was hanging on 
by two screws. Inglesby contacted DelGrippo Construction to see if they would be able to fix 
the shutter before it fell. They were able to do so and stated that there would not be any 



charge. Inglesby was going to send out a letter of Thanks.  Inglesby reported that there had 
been some vandalism done at the Little House. A minor had spray painted a wall on the building 
itself and the fence wall along the alley. Discussion was held regarding the cleanup and whether 
the minor should help with the cleanup. Inglesby is going to reach out to the Police Officer 
involved with the case to discuss the issue with him. 
 
 
Bellefonte branch - Nothing to report. 
 
Bookmobile - Struble stated that there were three applicants who had applied for the driver 
position before Denise left. There have been additional applicants who have applied for the 
position as well.  A part time staff member is also interested in the driving position. Troy Butler 
was to meet with someone from Eagle to take a look at the batteries but has not been able to 
set up a time as of yet. The larger battery will need to be replaced as it has leaked acid from the 
top, bottom and sides. Reese stated that Troy had informed her that there is a leak in the roof 
right above the driver side in the compartment area. Discussion was held regarding the repair 
of the leak. 
 
Holt - The leak in the toilet has been repaired and the water usage has gone down. Inglesby 
reported that last month a Mom and her two children had gotten stuck in the elevator and the 
fire company and State Police had to be called to help get them out. The elevator repair 
company came out the following day and stated they would contact Thyssenkrupp regarding 
the issue to see what could be done so it did not happen again.  
 
Centre Hall – Musical instruments have been installed outside at the library. Mulch is to be 
delivered by the 26th of May and the Boys Scouts will be out to spread it around the building 
and the instruments. Pavers will be ordered to be placed by the instruments as well. Inglesby 
attended the PPVLS meeting and they stated that the memorial bench for Pat Smith is close to 
being ready to install. Inglesby also stated that he was concerned about the heat pump in the 
library. It is currently the only source of heat for the entire building. The heat pump was 
installed 25 years ago and has not been updated as of yet. Discussion followed regarding the 
heat pump. Inglesby stated that when the addition has been completed an additional heating 
source will need to be installed. McCloskey stated that there is a gas line that is available for the 
library to tap into for additional heating. 
 
Planning: No updates. 
 
 
Nomination:  
Board vacancies – Kurtz was to reach out to the County Commissioners to ask if they had any 
specific criteria for the County board member nominee. Inglesby stated that he and Kurtz 
would have to wait until June to ask about the nominee. Inglesby stated that after the County 
has approved the nominee a vote can be held by the Board via email. The Board would also be 
able to vote for the at-large member at the same time as well.  
  



Comments for the Good of the Order and Adjournment: Taylor reported that NovelCon went 
great. The weather was perfect for the event. Lots of things were happening. Struble reported 
that there were no food trucks for the event. He stated that they have begun working on 
getting food trucks for next year already. Inglesby stated that he had attended the Centre Gives 
event at Talleyrand Park and stated that the Library needs to consider putting a table there next 
year as well during the event. Struble stated that Beth Schwartz had reached out to Centre 
Gives about getting a table for this year but the deadline had passed. A table will be set up next 
year at the event. Reese stated that the amount given before the stretch pool was added is 
$18,620. Gomez stated that a date has been set for Brady Clemens to meet with the Houtzdale 
library on June 20,2023. The next meeting will be held at the Holt Library on July 27, 2023. 
 
 
Barnett made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 P.M. Seconded by Taylor. Motion 
carried. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Michele Reese 
Office Manager 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING  

7:30 A.M.   

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 9TH. 2023 

AGENDA 

Members: 

Steve Snook (Member, Refuse) Chair  Mark Brooks (Member, Streets) 

Steve Caldana (Member, Water) V. Chair Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP- Mgmt) 

Bill Witmer (Member, Police)  Matt Auman (Member, PW-Mgmt)  

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) Don Holderman (Member, Mgmt)  

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept)  Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)         

Robbie Nichols (Member, WWTP)    

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

    

Guests: Ralph W Stewart  

  Barb Smith 

  April Ressler 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –July 12th, 2023    1st                                   2nd 

 

OLD BUSINESS  

➢ Safety Concern Forms Review  

➢ Recent safety incidents or near misses review 

➢ 3rd Quarter Facility Inspection- Pump Houses: Needs completed by September 30th, 2023 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

➢ Reorganization of Safety Committee:  

o New Safety Committee Members 

o Vice Chair Appointment 

➢ Video: Safety Committees: The Real Story 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

➢ Please try to limit all comments to three minutes maximum.  

 

NEXT MEETING  

➢ The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, September 13th, 2023 @ 7:30 AM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT    1st                                           2nd                 @                         a.m. 
 

 
 



 

 

BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 12TH, 2023, 7:30 A.M. 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH BUILDING COUNCIL ROOM 

 
Members Present:     

Mark Brooks (Member, streets) 

Matt Auman (Member, Mgmt) 

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) 

Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)  

Steve Caldana (Member, Water) V. Chair 

Steve Snook (Member, Refuse) Chair 

Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP-Mgmt) 

Don Holderman (Member, Mgmt) 

 

Absent:  

Bill Witmer (Member, Police) 

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept) 

Robbie Nichols (Member, WWTP) 

 

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

 

Guests: Barb Smith, Teeter Group 

             

 

CALL TO ORDER:  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 14th, 2023 

Mr. Brachbill moved to approve the meeting minutes. Mr. Caldana seconded.  Motion carried.  

OLD BUSINESS:   

 

Safety Concern Forms Review: None. 

 

Recent Safety incidents or near-miss reviews: None.  

 

Union Representative Appointment to Safety Committee & Vice Chair: The new appointed 

members to the Safety Committee will be in attendance of the August 9th, 2023 meeting. Safety 

Committee Annual Training will take place at the September 2023 Meeting.   

 

NEW BUSINESS:    

 

Accidents the People Factor Video: Good video. No discussion.  

 

 



 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER: None. 

 

NEXT MEETING:  Next meeting will be held on Wednesday, August 9th, 2023, @ 7:30 a.m.  

 

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Brachbill moved to adjourn. Mr. Holderman seconded the motion.  

Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 7:50 a.m.   



memo 

Company name 

To: Bellefonte Borough Council 

From:  Lori McGowan 

Date: 8/15/2023 

Re: JUNE 2023 Budget vs Actual Summary report 

 At the August 7, 2023 Bellefonte Borough Council meeting, it was requested that 

the July 2023 Budget vs Actual Summary report be removed from the consent 

agenda due to an incorrect date.  The report was actually the JUNE 2023 Budget vs 

Actual Summary report.  The July report is in tonight’s Council packet.  The date 

that was requested to be changed is CORRECT. Council requested that the report 

show the actual numbers from the prior year, which in 2023, is 2022.  Then, the 

budget for the current year (2023), the year to date (2023) expended, the percent 

year to date (2023) expended and the prior year (2022) year to date expended. 

If you would like the report changed, we would be happy to do that.  However, 

2023 actuals will not be available until 2024.   

 

  

 







����������	���
� ������
�����������������������

�����	������������������������ �

!�
"#$%&'�%��()*%+%,��%�-$�./$�*%+),!0�"'#&1�#*%��2
!
3�4�� #"�5��+6�789$6��:�� ���

;<=>?@?<A�BC=?AD@�E?CCFG�HGIJKDLMNOPQR�STMMUOV�WXYTMMUOVZNMTTM[OVUM\Q]̂O_̀abM�cdefdghgi�ijec�klaOjmQT\R�nUMoQPU�WPpUMoQPUZNMTTM[OVUM\Q]̂O_̀qLOVQTX�rOTXMPsQVWXROTXMPsQVZNMTTM[OVUM\Q]̂O_̀qLOb̂�tORVpOV�WXuORVpOVZNMTTM[OVUM\Q]̂O_̀SYjvTwppQ�LORMPUw�WQXORMPUwZNMTTM[OVUM\Q]̂O_̀g�QUUQYRsMVUp�xgyi�z{|r]m]�iiyg]\X[q�r]m]�g}~c���Svmn�vYU]\X[q���������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����¡������¢�£��������������������������¤¥������£�¥¥���¦���§����������̈������������¥��������������������¢�����������¥���©�������ª���£�������������§��¥��������£����¥�«�����������������������������¥���¥�������������¡��������������������©������¡��¥������������̈�������������������������������������������¥�̈¡������ �����������������������������������������������������¤£¦�¢��������¥���¬�����������¥����������������¥�������������������������������®�¬�������������¥��������¦����������¤����̄�������°�����������������������¬����¡�����������������¤¥������±��²����¦���§���������������������������³�¢¢��



8/15/23, 3:05 PM H. R. 2948 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr2948/BILLS-118hr2948ih.xml 1/2

118�� CONGRESS
1�� S������

H. R. 2948

To amend title 23, United States Code, with respect to the operation of certain
specialized hauling vehicles on the Interstate System, and for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

A���� 27, 2023

Mr. G����� of Texas (for himself, Mr. M���, and Mr. B��� of Florida) introduced the following bill;
which was referred to the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure

A BILL
To amend title 23, United States Code, with respect to the operation of certain

specialized hauling vehicles on the Interstate System, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States
of America in Congress assembled,

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as the “Carrying Automobiles Responsibly and Safely
Act” or the “CARS Act”.

SEC. 2. OPERATION OF CERTAIN SPECIALIZED HAULING VEHICLES ON
INTERSTATE.

Section 127 of title 23, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end
the following:

“(x) O�������� O� C������ S���������� H������ V������� O�
T�� I���������.—



8/15/23, 3:05 PM H. R. 2948 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr2948/BILLS-118hr2948ih.xml 2/2

“(1) IN GENERAL.—A State may not prohibit the operation of a stinger-
steered combination automobile transporter with a gross weight of 88,000
pounds or less on—

“(A) any segment of the Interstate System (except a system exempted
under section 31111(f) of title 49); or

“(B) the classes of qualifying Federal-aid primary highways
designated by the Secretary under section 31111(e) of title 49.

“(2) REASONABLE ACCESS.—No State may enact or enforce a law
denying reasonable access to stinger-steered combination automobile
transporters, to and from highways described in paragraph (1), to loading or
unloading points or facilities for food, fuel, repair, and rest.

“(3) AXLE WEIGHT TOLERANCE.—A State shall allow a stinger-
steered combination automobile transporter an increase of not more than 10
percent on the axle weight limitations set forth in subsection (a).

“(4) STINGER-STEERED COMBINATION AUTOMOBILE
TRANSPORTER DEFINED.—In this subsection, the term ‘stinger-steered
combination automobile transporter’ means a truck tractor semitrailer wherein
the fifth wheel is located on a drop frame located behind and below the rear-
most axle of the power unit.”.



8/15/23, 3:04 PM H. R. 3372 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr3372/BILLS-118hr3372ih.xml 1/5

118�� CONGRESS
1�� S������

H. R. 3372

To amend title 23, United States Code, to establish a safety data collection program
for certain 6-axle vehicles, and for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

M�� 16, 2023

Mr. J������ of South Dakota (for himself and Mr. C����) introduced the following bill; which was
referred to the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure

A BILL
To amend title 23, United States Code, to establish a safety data collection program

for certain 6-axle vehicles, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States
of America in Congress assembled,

SECTION 1. SAFETY DATA COLLECTION PROGRAM FOR CERTAIN 6-AXLE
VEHICLES.

Section 127 of title 23, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end
the following:

“(x) P���� P������ F�� S����� D��� C��������� O� C������
6-A��� V�������.—

“(1) GENERAL AUTHORITY.—Not later than 30 days after the date of
enactment of this subsection, the Secretary shall establish a pilot program
(referred to in this subsection as the ‘pilot program’) under which States



8/15/23, 3:04 PM H. R. 3372 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr3372/BILLS-118hr3372ih.xml 2/5

admitted by the Secretary under paragraph (2) may allow covered 6-axle
vehicles to be operated on the Interstate System in the State.

“(2) ADMISSION TO PILOT PROGRAM.—

“(A) INITIAL APPLICATION.—Beginning on the date that is 30
days after the date of enactment of this subsection, a State seeking to
participate in the pilot program shall submit an application to the
Secretary in electronic form, containing such administrative information
as the Secretary may require, including a certification that the State has or
will have the authority pursuant to State law to implement the pilot
program.

“(B) ADMISSION.—The Secretary shall admit to the pilot program,
on a rolling basis, States that submit a completed application under
subparagraph (A).

“(C) ELECTION TO NO LONGER PARTICIPATE.—If a State
elects to no longer participate in the pilot program, the State shall notify
the Secretary of such election.

“(3) MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION.—

“(A) IN GENERAL.—To be eligible to participate in the pilot
program, a State shall agree to implement the pilot program through the
issuance of permits per vehicle or group of vehicles with respect to
covered 6-axle vehicles.

“(B) PERMIT.—A permit described in subparagraph (A) shall—

“(i) describe the Interstate System routes that may be used while
operating at greater than 80,000 pounds gross vehicle weight in a
covered 6-axle vehicle; and

“(ii) require the permit holder to report to the State, with respect
to each covered 6-axle vehicle for which such permit was issued—

“(I) each accident (as such term is defined in section 390.5
of title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as in effect on the date
of enactment of this subsection) that occurred in the State
involving the covered 6-axle vehicle on the Interstate System in
the State;

“(II) the estimated gross vehicle weight of each covered 6-
axle vehicle at the time of an accident described in subclause (I);



8/15/23, 3:04 PM H. R. 3372 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr3372/BILLS-118hr3372ih.xml 3/5

and

“(III) the estimated miles traveled by the covered 6-axle
vehicle on the Interstate System in the State annually.

“(C) SAFETY EQUIPMENT INCENTIVE.—

“(i) FEE REDUCTION.—With respect to any fee associated
with a permit under this paragraph, the State may reduce the fee
otherwise applicable to a vehicle by 67 percent if the vehicle is
equipped with an automatic emergency braking system, including
such systems in use on the date of enactment of this subsection.

“(ii) GROUP OF VEHICLES.—As applied to a permit for a
group of vehicles, the reduction under clause (i) shall only apply with
respect to individual vehicles in the group that are equipped with an
automatic emergency breaking system, including such systems in use
on the date of enactment of this subsection.

“(4) OTHER AUTHORIZATIONS NOT AFFECTED.—This subsection
shall not restrict—

“(A) a vehicle that may operate under any other provision of this
section or another Federal law; or

“(B) a State’s authority with respect to a vehicle that may operate
under any other provision of this section or another Federal law.

“(5) NO HIGHWAY FUNDING REDUCTION.—Notwithstanding
subsection (a), funds apportioned to a State under section 104 for any period
may not be reduced because the State authorizes the operation of covered 6-
axle vehicles within such State in accordance with this subsection.

“(6) ANNUAL REPORT.—Not later than the first March 1 after the date
of enactment of this subsection, and annually thereafter, a State participating in
the pilot program shall submit to the Secretary with respect to the previous
calendar year, a report on—

“(A) the number of accidents (as such term is defined in section
390.5 of title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (as in effect on the date of
enactment of this subsection)) that occurred on the Interstate System in the
State involving a covered 6-axle vehicle for which a permit was issued
under the pilot program;



8/15/23, 3:04 PM H. R. 3372 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr3372/BILLS-118hr3372ih.xml 4/5

“(B) the estimated gross vehicle weight of each such vehicle at the
time of the accident in the State described in subparagraph (A); and

“(C) the estimated miles traveled by such vehicle on the Interstate
System in the State.

“(7) TERMINATION OF PILOT PROGRAM.—

“(A) IN GENERAL.—Except as provided in subparagraph (B), the
pilot program shall terminate on the date that is 10 years after the date of
enactment of this subsection.

“(B) ADDITIONAL APPLICATION; CONTINUATION OF
AUTHORITY.—For a period of 10 years beginning on the date described
in subparagraph (A), the Secretary may continue the pilot program with
respect to each State in the program, upon the application of a State and
after consideration of—

“(i) the actual experience of the State under the pilot program;
and

“(ii) any documents or other material submitted by the State in
support of such an application.

“(8) COVERED 6-AXLE VEHICLE DEFINED.—In this subsection, the
term ‘covered 6-axle vehicle’ means a vehicle—

“(A) equipped with 6 or more axles;

“(B) for which the weight—

“(i) on any single axle of the vehicle does not exceed 20,000
pounds, including enforcement tolerances;

“(ii) on any tandem axle of the vehicle does not exceed 34,000
pounds, including enforcement tolerances; and

“(iii) on any group of three or more axles of the vehicle does not
exceed 45,000 pounds, including enforcement tolerances;

“(C) for which the gross weight does not exceed the lesser of—

“(i) 91,000 pounds, including enforcement tolerances; and

“(ii) the maximum permitted by the bridge formula under
subsection (a); and



8/15/23, 3:04 PM H. R. 3372 (Introduced-in-House)

https://www.congress.gov/118/bills/hr3372/BILLS-118hr3372ih.xml 5/5

“(D) that is not a longer combination vehicle, as such term is defined
in subsection (d)(4).”.









 

August 3, 2023 

 
 
 
 
Dear Bellefonte Borough Council,  
 
Downtown Bellefonte Inc. recognizes how beloved the Bellefonte Under the Lights event has become to 
the community over the last four years. That is why this year we feel that it’s important for us to 
continue to host the Under the Lights event, even though the event will look different from the previous 
year's event that everyone knows and loves. At its core, it will still function as a DBI fundraiser with the 
focus of promoting Bellefonte area businesses and community.  
 
A major focus of Under the Lights has always been on the activation and usage of an underutilized part 
of town. This worked well with previous Under the Lights at the waterfront, and we recognize that by 
moving the location of this year’s event, we can bring a renewed focus to another part of town. 
 
DBI would like to host Under the Lights this year as a communal block party at the Spring Street 
Municipal Lot. There will be an entrance fee and a “pay as you go” model for guests to interact with  
Bellefonte restaurants who will be serving food and a number of members from the Central PA Tasting 
Trail serving their craft beverages. Guests will be encouraged to “bring your own tableware” and we will  
partner with local businesses to be on hand to sell plates to those who need them.  
 
Attendees will be given a wrist band after paying and presenting proof of age to a RAMP certified 
volunteer. Beverage sales will be by the glass only and not bottles. Event boundaries will be clearly 
marked with signs and alcohol will not be permitted off-site.  
 
We are requesting approval for the updated version of this event as outlined below for 2023.  
 
Bellefonte Under the Lights, Block Party 
Fundraiser for Downtown Bellefonte Inc.  
We feel that it’s important for the community for us to maintain the Under the Lights event even in this 
instance where the event layout has changed. 
 
Date: Friday, October 20, 2023  
Time: Event time: 6pm - 9pm on Friday; will  
start setting up at noon on Friday and will have clean up completed by 11pm.  
Rain Date: Friday, October  27, 2023  
Location: We request the following closures from 12 am - 11 pm Friday, October 20, 2023. The complete 
closure of the Municipal Street South parking lot as the event venue. Closures of both W. Cherry Lane 
from S. Spring Street to S. Allegheny Street, and Perry Lane from W. Bishop Street to W. Cherry Lane 



 

will give the event more space and a boundary provided by buildings. 
Affected businesses and the community will be properly notified of the 
closures in advance.  
 
Security:  
Perimeters will be established on two sides with the two road closures 
and existing buildings. The other side (facing The Waffle shop) will be 
established with vendor booths and volunteers tables, registration 
tables will be at the Spring Street entrances of the parking lot. Please see the event map included in this 
application. Like past years, we will work with the Police Department and Fire Police (based upon their 
availability) to provide the utmost safety to our ticket-holders.  
 
Special event insurance has been secured with the Bellefonte Borough included as an additional party 
insured.  
 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
  
Kathleen Ammon,   
Community and Programming Manager,  
Downtown Bellefonte Inc.     
 
 





����������	
��������������������������������� ��!�"��#$#%&''(�)*+,�-(.*/012*�3456789�:;<;=>=?�:@?>�AB�C�D@?>�EBF�G����H�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�QR<>>�DSS�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�TUV�W9XX9YJMZ9V�EAV�<[:=?V�\M]Z9U�̂ZOZ9N_àbcddcefg�h�i�j�hkl��m��������� ��!�#��#$#%&''(�)*+,�-(.*/012*�3456n9U�:;=;=>=?�:@?>�AB�C�D@?>�EBF�G����H�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�QR<>>�DSS�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�TUV�W9XX9YJMZ9V�EAV�<[:=?V�\M]Z9U�̂ZOZ9N_àbcddcefg�h�i�j�hk�o�p�������� ��!�%��#$#%&''(�)*+,�-(.*/012*�34567q8�:;?;=>=?�:@?>�AB�C�D@?>�EBF�G����H�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�QR<>>�DSS�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�TUV�W9XX9YJMZ9V�EAV�<[:=?V�\M]Z9U�̂ZOZ9N_àbcddcefg�h�i�j�hkr4s/�(40*t�r4s/�u422*v�w'2x,y'67q8�:;?;=>=?�?@>>�EB�C�[@?>�EBF�G����H�7OXX9zLOMU�EOLP�QW9XX9YJMZ9V�E9MMNzXKOM]OV�\M]Z9U�̂ZOZ9N_{|f}~|�{e�f}��{efg|~ba}cef��cg}~c�}�cg�cfbc}cf��}�|��e���fc}��}e�{e�|�e�}�}e�d|a~f�a�e�}�~acf��a~~|dg��cfg}adda}cef��acf}|faf�|��af���acf}��e�~�b|~��e�f�~acf��a~~|d�a}�fe��eg}���e���af��e}|f}cadd��~|���|��e�~�}e�fg�c��g}e~��a}|~��||��{e�|adef|�e~��~cf��}�|���ed|��a�cd����acd�af����|g}cefg�}e���~�e�f�~�e��|f}~|�e�f}��a��eb��u��-20,�4/(�324�0,��4s27q8�:;?;=>=?V�[@>>�EB�ZJ��L]�:;D;=>=?V�<=@>>�AB�}~||}��deg�~|��|�cfg�����g}�k�����k�a}������p�������� ��!� ��#$#%�466¡�¢4vv*¡��/.s040s'/4v�L]�:;D;=>=?�£@>>�AB�C�:@>>�EBF�G����H�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�QR<>>�DSS�IJK9LMJLN�EOLP�TUV�W9XX9YJMZ9V�EAV�<[:=?V�\M]Z9U�̂ZOZ9N_

¤¥
¤¥
¤¥



�����������	
�	����	������������������	����	
���
������������	����
�����������
�������� �  ��
�!�
���"�#�����$"�% %��������&����'�	����(�������)
��	�
(����
���
�!�
�����!������	�*�+,$,-.%�/�.%%0��������	��+�1�-�% /1. %2334�5678�94:6;<=>6�?@ABCDE�FGHGIJIK�FLKJ�MN�O�HLKJ�PNQRSTUVRWX�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�abcJJ�Hdd�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�efg�h\ii\jZ]k\g�PMg�clFIKg�m]Ek\f�nk_k\̂o��������
��p�$�q�p�rst�9><8�@;4�?>@u<8�v@w>CDE�FGHGIJIK�cJLJJ�MN�O�FLJJ�PNx�	����(����	������
��y�������"�% %�����1���z{|}~�{����}�}�|��������9;;=@��r@BB���@��6����37437;��3=>;@A6;<n_k�FG�GIJIK�kZ�n�]�FGlGIJIKQRSTUVRWX�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�abcJJ�Hdd�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�efg�h\ii\jZ]k\g�PMg�clFIKg�m]Ek\f�nk_k\̂o������������������������������ ¡����¢����£�������¤¥¤¦¤§̈¦¥§̈ �̈©¢¡����ª�«�£¡¬�®̄���¢°��±��²�¥¤³¤̈´́ µ́¶·̧¹º»¼½¾·µ¿¹À Á��Â���Â¡���Á���Ã¡�Ä�°��Ã�������Å³³Æ³³�Ç���ÈÁ�ÈÉ�Ê��Ä��¡�£����Â¡����£¡�¡�ËÁÆ����������¡���°¡��Ã����������Ê¡��������¡���������¡Â��Á�����¢�ÌÊ��°����É�¡Ã��Á���¢������Ê�É��������« �Ê��¢�Í�Ä�¡���Á��Î��ÄÆ��ÏÂ°¡��Ã�����¡��Ð��Ñ���Á��Ê�����¡¬���Ä��¡��Ä��°���¢±��������É�¡Ã���Ä�Ã��È���Î�Ä��¡¢�¡����¡��������Ã��Á���Ò��ÈÉ��������Ë�����¡�Æ���Ã����Á�Ç���Á��Î��Ä�¢¡Ã�Ä�©����¢��Ë��Á���������°�Ë������°��Á��ª���Ä�����Ä�Â¡���Á��Ã��É��ÄÆ��Ó�ÍÔ�������������Õ¡��Ó����É�¡Ã��¡�Ê����Á���¡��Á���È����Ä��ÆÖ×<��9;;=@��r6>Øw6Ù8�r3A6<37;�Ú33Bn_k�FG�GIJIK�FLJJ�MN�O�ccLJJ�MNrst�9><8�@;4�?>@u<8�v@w>n_k�FG�GIJIK�cJLJJ�MN�O��LJJ�PNx�	����(����	������
��y�������"�% %�����1���z}Û�{����}�}�|�Ü������9;;=@��r@BB���@��6����37437;��3=>;@A6;<n_k�FG�GIJIK�kZ�n�]�FGlGIJIKQRSTUVRWX�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�abcJJ�Hdd�YZ[\D]ZD̂�P_D̀�efg�h\ii\jZ]k\g�PMg�clFIKg�m]Ek\f�nk_k\̂o

ÝÞÞ
Þ

ÞÞ
Þ



����������	
�������������
��������
������
���
�����������������������	�������� 	
��!�
"�	#���$��%%%&'()*+,-./(&0*1�2��3���3����2���4��5
!��4�������6�$$7$$�8�
�92�9:�;
�5���������3����������<27��	��
��������!���4����������;���������������
����3��2����
��=;�
!����:��4��2
�����
���;�:���
�������;����>�5�����2��?��57��@3!���4
�������A��B���2��;��������
�5�����5��!����"��������:��4�
�5�4��9
��?�5������������
������4��2�
�C��9:���
����<�������7���4����2
8���2��?��5���4�5��
������<��2�������
�!�<�
����!��2����
�5�����5�3����2��4��:��57��D
>E��	��
�������F���D���
:��4����;����2������2���9
���5
�7GHIIJK�LMNOJKP�GJKQJR�QN�STUUJVKTNW�XTKYZ[\�]̂_̂ à̀b�cdaa�ef�g�]daa�efhijklmino�pqrrstuq\v�equw�xysrrsz{\|s}�es\\~tr�q\�q}��\�|sv�Z|q|s~������������������������������������������������ VUTN�LKHNQOY�¡TRJ¢TUU�SMHKNTIJNPZq|�]̂£̀^̀àb�]daa�¤f�g�]daa�efhijklmino�¥{�su\{u~�equw�x¦£aa�§̈ �̈¥{�su\{u~�equw�©v}�ysrrsz{\|s}�e¤}�£_]̀b}��\�|sv�Z|q|s~�ª��������«¬��®̄°±²³�́���µ�±���³�¶��··�̧±²²�̄�������«��¹�̧��³�ºJ»QMN�¼½½KJOQTPQMN� TVZq|�]̂£̀^̀àb�££daa�¤f�g�̈daa�efhijklmino�¤¾su�¿q\�ÀsÁ�{\�x£̀£�Â�Ã{Äquv�Z|}�ysrrsz{\|s}�e¤}�£_]̀b}��\�|sv�Z|q|s~�Å�Æ±�̄�ª����°±��±�̄���¬�Ç��̄�³�µ±²²�̄�������È������°��®��Å�̄��°²�·���É��¹�Ê�̧����Ë���������Ì®���̧·�É��¹�ÍÍªÎÏÐÑÎ³ÒÈ����̧±²²�̄�������«��Ì���±°���·����������ÉÉ�É����È��°²�·®��³Ñ�²±°�Ó�Ì�ÆÆ±̄Æ��É���¹����·��̄�Ê�̧����Ë�����³���Ô�������������������� VUTN�LKHNQOY�¡TRJ¢TUU�SMHKNTIJNPZ[\�]̂£b̂ à̀b�]daa�¤f�g�]daa�efhijklmino�¥{�su\{u~�equw�x¦£aa�§̈ �̈¥{�su\{u~�equw�©v}�ysrrsz{\|s}�e¤}�£_]̀b}��\�|sv�Z|q|s~�ª��������«¬��®̄°±²³�́���µ�±���³�¶��··�̧±²²�̄�������«��¹�̧��³�GHIIJK�LMNOJKP�GJKQJR�QN�STUUJVKTNW�XTKYZ[\�]̂£b̂ à̀b�cdaa�ef�g�]daa�efhijklmino�pqrrstuq\v�equw�xysrrsz{\|s}�es\\~tr�q\�q}��\�|sv�Z|q|s~�����������������������Õ�Ö�������������×������

ØÙ
ÙÙ
ÙØÙ



����������	
�����	�������������	
������������������������������ �������!"#$%&"'()*&+$,�&'�%-.�/)"'%.(�0.'%*.�0"1'%,�0"1*%-"12.3�456�7�899.:-.',�7%�;�<=>;?=>@"A&.2�&'�%-.�B$*C(�D$99.,*$'+�B$*C�E�%-.�8''.F�GA.'%�%&>.(�?=>�;�45=>HIJKLMN�OIPIQR�STN�SUSVW	���	�XY��Z��[�W\���		���W	]W�̂��_�Z	���X�̀ `Z��	��a���	bcd����e������ ���������f������g.h1.2%�i"*�7%*..%�09"21*.(�7j�B"%%.*�7%*..%�i*">�0k7�%"�ll�B"m.99�"'�81:12%�6n%-3�656o�4(55�=>;p(55�=>�i"*�$�7$i.�g"1%.20">>1'&%,�GA.'%j��qrsstuv�wutxuvsy�zvy�{zvv�|s}uvysy�tu�z~~�u�s�t�s�}ru|��s�u������utts���t�sst���uw�q���tu�����u�srr�uv�����|t���t�������������~w������~w��u��t�s��z�s��u�ts|�quww�vxt����svt��{x|}�||xuv�xv}r�ysy������ts�z�t�}rz�x��xv��t�s�z~~�u�zr�x|}uvyxtxuvzr�uv�t�s�z}t�zr�ru}ztxuv�u��t�s�ystu������x}���xrr��s�ysts�wxvsy�}ru|s��tu�t�s�s�svt���t��z|�zr|u�}rz�x�xsy�t�zt�t�s�zts���t�sst��s~zx��ystu���|�u�ry��s�}uw~rstsy��s�u�s�t�x|�yzts�zvy�|�u�ry�vut�xw~z}t�t�s�}ru|��s�ystu������}uv}s�v��z|�zx|sy��s�z�yxv��t�s��s|xysvt|�zt�t�s�svy�u���utts���t�sst��sxv��z�rs�tu�z}}s||�t�sx���s|xysv}s|�y��xv��t�s�}ru|��s���t��z|}rz�x�xsy�t�s�}ru|��s��u�ry��s�u~sv�tu��ru}zr�t�z��x}�uvr�����urr�qzrr��uts���utxuv�}z��xsy������ ¡]W���	�¢�
��X�	
�Y�£�W£
��Y�¤Y�����¥��̂�	
��¤�£�¦�£��bcd����e����������������§������2̈.�"i�B$A�©46�i"*�ª9.22&':�"i�%-.�ª$#C=$#C2�$'+�@$22j�GA.'%�&2�i*">�6(55=>;«(55=>j�)..�m$&A.+j

¬





����������	
	������������������������������� !"#!$%!��&��'(')*+!,����� !"#!$%!��-��'(')./012/�.34015�647879/�:2/;/01730�<=>?�@328/�:2/;/01730�A=BB5CDE�FGHGIJIK�LLMKJ�NO�P�IMJJ�QOR�S���T�CUVVEWXUYZ�QUX[�\]EVVÊ_ỲEa�QEYYbWVcUYdUa�eYd̀EZ�f̀ÙEbghijklm�nopk�mq�rissktuivp�wiuxy�zkk�{io|ku�qmu�}nk�mq�wiuxy�{oss�vkkp�~m��i|k�i��knn�~m��m�ku�i~�hijklm�ivp�li~�umm�n�m�kvkpy��mum}���uk�}oukn�����ivp����y����p�ovon~ui~o|k�zkky��~~�n����uk|kv~n}o�opk�iymu��~inx�qmu�k��m}v~t�ovo~��kv~uk� �#+������ !"#!$%!�����'(')<270715��071/9��/1�397>1�.�428��.3��40715��32>�7��6/2;78/fÙ�FGFGIJIK�FMJJ�NO�P�KMJJ�QO{oss�vkkp�ksk�~uo��ov�~�k�hijklm���oss�vkkp�li~�umm�n�~m�lk�}vsm�xkpy�{oss��iv��livvku����kkxn�lkqmuk�k|kv~y����um|kp����������� +������ !"#!$%!��&(��'(')�/BB/�301/��33>/�A4��/2� 48?�A=8/fDY�FGLJGIJIK�LIMJJ�QO�P�¡MJJ�QOR�S���T�CUVVEWXUYZ�QUX[�\]EVVÊ_ỲEa�QEYYbWVcUYdUa�eYd̀EZ�f̀ÙEbg¢|kv~�pmkn�vm~�uk�}ouk�ivt��mum}����nnon~iv�ky�£i~k�i��um|kp���������¢|kv~����um|kp����¤������� �#+������ !"#!$%!��&¥��'(')�=>/�=BB�6�3¦8=>/�.=��fÙ�FGL§GIJIK�̈MJJ�NO�P�§MJJ�QOR�S���T�©_cEXY_Xªb�QUX[�\©_cEXY_Xb�QUX[�«Za�]EVVÊ_ỲEa�QUa�L§¬IKa�eYd̀EZ�f̀ÙEbg

 ®̄°±²̄�®³́°±µ�¶�·²̧̄ °̄±�¹́º»º¼̄�·½¾¿ÀÁÀÂÃÄÅÆÇÆÈÀ¾ÉÊË¿Ì






�����������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������� !��"�����##�$
����%&�'��%��
� ���%����(	���&)*�)+ ##����,� ������� �#�������-����%������������������������	./0123455�678479:;�09;�<099�=:179;:;�87�0>>/7?:�82:�@=:�7A�B7?:/97/C=�D0/E�.0=:3055�F4:5;�A7/�82:�.0=:3055�G27H10=:I06>�79�G:>8:63:/�JKL�MKMNO�<4=1@==479�4915@;:;�150/4A4108479�8208�824=�7/P094Q08479�4=�978�:54P435:�A7/�A::�H04?:/=O�R7551055�?78:O�S78479�10//4:;O�TUVWXYZ�T[\][̂ _[̀�abZ�cdcefghijgkk�lmnopghi�qgrstuv�wxyzx{|{}�z~||�������~||������������������v����������������v��������������������v��������y��{}���v�����t����� �����������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������� !��"�����##�$
����%&�'��%��
� ���%����(	���&)*�)+ ##����,� ������� �#�������-����%������������������������	./0123455�678479:;�09;�<099�=:179;:;�87�0>>/7?:�82:�@=:�7A�B7?:/97/C=�D0/E�.0=:3055�F4:5;�A7/�82:�.0=:3055�G27H10=:I06>�79�G:>8:63:/�JKL�MKMNO�<4=1@==479�4915@;:;�150/4A4108479�8208�824=�7/P094Q08479�4=�978�:54P435:�A7/�A::�H04?:/=O�R7551055�?78:O�S78479�10//4:;O�¡g¢i£rg£¤i�¥¦�¢mi�§g£¤tuv�wxyzx{|{}��~||������̈~||�������������©����ª��v���������������v������vv�ª���v�����v�����t����� «¬¬®̄ °±�²³́³µ¶µ́«··�̧¹¹º�»¼½¾�²³¿¶³µ¶µ́fikkiÀn¦¢i�Á¦¢i£ÂgkkiÃ�Ä£ig�qmgrji£�nÀ�qnrri£pi�q£nÅÆi¢�ÇnÆ£¦gri¦¢tuv�wxyzx{|{}�yy~||�������~||�������������©����ª��v���������������v������vv�ª���v�����v�����t����� °ÈÉ¹Ê¾¹¾�¼Ë¹¼�Ì̧�Í¼··¹ÎË¼Ê¾�¬¼ËÏÐ[WV[ÑWXYZ�T[\][̂ _[̀�cbZ�cdcefÄlÒ�q£nhh�qnÆ¦¢£Ã�ÓÔÔÇÕ���wx{zx{|{}�}~||�������~||���ÖÌ×¹ËÊÌËØº�¬¼ËÏÙÚÙÑWXYZ�T[\][̂ _[̀�cÛZ�cdceǛÝWXYZ�T[\][̂ _[̀�cÞZ�cdce

ß
ß
ß



��������	
	���������������������������������� !�"#$��%��&'&()*+,-�./01�2*1�34/5�60,784*-589:;�<=>?>@=@A�?B==�CD�E�AB==�FDG��H����I�JK:LM�N:O�PQRS:TU�V<=<�W�CXXKYZKTU�9;[�JKXXK\QT;K[�FC[�<]̂@A[�_T̀;KM�9;:;Kabcdde�fgd�hdfdij�klmmde�lf�fgd�niopqjfoqd�nrstesqm���������� !�"#$��&u��&'&(64*vw�.5,v85�xyvw�z,,04/�{4/|}20,�y~9:;�<=>@<>@=@A��B==�CD�E�<@B==�FD�������������������������l�d�pstt�kd��ioh�������lh�������lh��l��lffl�gde��il�d�pstt�kdmsq�lqe�dqe�lf�nsm���isqm���sisfj��cs�otd��rhhdij�qjrhhdij��lsfg�dqfid�sq�o�������� !�"#$��&%��&'&(�4��x����4��x ¡34*,v�¢+w,�.4vw+/*£�3£w++/�24£5�¤+8�¥70£4v*+,¦L̀�<=>@?>@=@A�̂B==�CD�E�@B==�FDG��H����I�§Q̈KLTQLa�F:L©�Vª<==�«���§Q̈KLTQLa�F:L©�¬M[�JKXXK\QT;K[�FC[�<]̂@A[�_T̀;KM�9;:;Kab���������®�̄����������°���®�������±��²̄��������³ĺstsoq�µ��¶�µ�·�lqe�fgdq�rjd�lq̧�ĺlstlktd�³ĺstsoqj��oi�kidl¹j�oi�ofgdi�l�fśsfsdj�ltoqm�psfg�fgd�plt¹sqm��lfg��ºdd�plśde�68*74»�*,�vw5�6+,v5���¼+�*5-�*,�vw5��48|¦L̀�<=>@?>@=@A�½B==�FD�E�<=B==�FD¾o�lfsoq�ºiseļ�sq�fgd�¿ºoqfd��Àdqfid�Àorqf̧�Àorifgorjd����·���Áttdmgdq̧��f���Â�h�Ã�h�ósdj�sq�fgd�³li¹��Älttḑilqe�³li¹�Å�fgd�ÁqqdÆ�Ḉdqf�fshd��Ã�h������h���������� !�"#$��&È��&'&(É4//5»84,7�64//�65-v9:;�<=>@̂>@=@A�̂BA=�CD�E�«B==�FDG��H����I�Ê:XXKUL:TM�F:L©�VJKXXK\QT;K[�FKTTaUẌ:T̀:[�_T̀;KM�9;:;Kab��d�slt�Äiljg��s�¹r��lf�fgd��oq�trjsoq�oq�fgd�d́dqf��Ëstt�gĺd��oiflktd�fostdfj�edtśdide�lqe��s�¹de�r���ioh�fgd�d́dqf��

Ì

Ì
ÍÌ
Ì



����������	�
�������������������������������������������� !"#��$�%&'(&��)��$�$*��+,�)�"$��-�./*00,1�2���!/���#�3!,,����4,�/����-�5'(&��)��"����)06�����07"��%%'&&��)1��������807$�'�9�:!"";�<�=,,� *�"-�.$���$�$0�>07�$*07#�?��03"�91�@! *�.$���$�$0�A�,,�-��"�����B1�C



����������	
���� �����������������������������

�����	������������������� � ����!"�#��$���%��&'()*+�)��#,-).)/��)�0(�12(�-).,/%3�&+�'*4�'-)��5�%�)6�
��"�78���9�:4�9�;< ���

=>?�@ABBACDEFA�GFHAAFIJKLAI�@MN�OAPMA>QRSTUV�WRUVXYZTS�[V\RUVXYZTS] X̂UUX_RS̀XaTbcRdef\g�hijkilmln�jonk�pqfRorUsttT�QR\XỲs�[TVR\XỲs] X̂UUX_RS̀XaTbcRdeuvoQRgc�wR\StRS�[VxR\StRS] X̂UUX_RS̀XaTbcRdeyzTUa\�{̀X|TỲ�[Yt̀X|TỲ] X̂UUX_RS̀XaTbcRde}~������~������������������~�������������������������~������������~�������~������}��������������������������~~������������������������ ���¡��������¢��£¤¥¦§�̈�©����ª��«���¬���«��®��̄���~�°����±²³́µ§�¶�������·�}�������̧·�¢ ¢���¢� ����¹¥§�����~����~�������¬���~������®º�~~�����������«±»���������¼�����¬��������¼����®��~�½ ����±¾¿§�À�~~����������·����Á��¬���~~�����~���®������������±»�Â�~���ª��°����¬����°���®º�~~�����������«±²ÃÄÅ³¿µ§�ÂÆ����~~�������ª����������������Â�«��°���������Ç���«����«��°������������������������~�°�º�����������������������������~��������������������º����������·��������������~����°�������������������������������ÀÈÂ�º��������°��������º������������¡��~�°����º�������Â������·�����������������������������ÉÊËË�ÌÍÎÏÊÐ�����������������������������ÑÒÓÔÕÖÖÔÑ×ÕÖ�
���������������������������������������0���Ø�5��Ù����������������������������������������:������!����Ú����Û����������������������������������������(��

����
�������������������������������������(��

���2(�Ü�#Ý���



����������	
���� �����������������������������

�����	������������������� � ����!"�#��$���%��&'()*+�)��#,-).)/��)�0(�12(�-).,/%3�&+�'*4�'-)��5�%�)6�
��"�78���9�:4�9�;< ���

=>?@A�BCDEFG�HCFGIJKED�LGMCFGIJKEDNOIFFIPCDQIRESTCUVWXYZA�[M\J]GÊ_�̀\T\]Q�ab_�cdce�fgaf�̀hi?A�jJkED�HClIkD]�LjJkEDSHClIkD]NQmFendSoCKVp�qIrJÎ�sQCUIJ�Lt]QCUIJNDkuED̂FEvSoCKVwxA�yEFFETMIJz{CDT_�hkQ|k�LKTEFFETMIJFCDTN]IGEzoCTSCJTVp�}EFRM�sQIvEJQ�LJ]QIvEJQNOIFFIPCDQIRESTCUVW~��XxZA�}Ig�jIFFIPCDQI�sQJIIQ]oERI]�jkG�}IUkIv�Hk�qIrg��\J]\EDQ�QC�K̂��\kom�oCDUIJ]E�CD�vkQM�̂C\�IEJFkIJ�QMk]�vIIm_�vC\FG�̂C\�RFIE]I�FCCm�EQ�QMI�EuEoMIGkDPCJKE�CD�EDG�JIUkIv�CP�QMI�OkG]�Ô�s�B̀z��y���C\DQ̂�EDG�jCJC\TM�̀GKkDk]QJEQCJ�CP�C\J��Bjy�JCTJEK�S����I�EJI�FCCmkDT�PCJ�̂C\J�JIoCKKIDGE�CD�E]�QC�vMIQMIJ�QC�Gk]�\EFkP̂�QMI�FCv�OkGGIJ�EDGTC�QC�QMI�]IoCDG�FCvI]Q�OkGGIJS��ykUID�QMI�]MCJQ�Q\JDzEJC\DG��KI_���QMkDm���vkFF�MEUI��C\DokF�UCQI�CDhCDGÊ�QC�EooIRQ�̂C\J�JIoCKKIDGE�CD�]C�vI�oED�KCUI�PCJvEJG�vkQMC\Q�vEk�DT�\D�F�C\JsIRQIKOIJ��QM�KII�DTS���oED��FF�̂C\�kD�E�FkuFIJ�KCJI�QMk]�E�IJDCCD�E�IJ�C\J�CQMIJ�KII�DTS�[MEDm�̂C\_�BCDEFG�{S�HCFGIJKED]̀]k]QEDQ�jCJC\TM�hEDETIJjIFFIPCDQI�jCJC\TM�a�ze��za�da�I�QID]kCD�ca�=>?@A��IKOIJFkDT_�̀DTkI�LEmIKOIJFkDTN]IGEzoCTSCJTVWXYZA�[M\J]GÊ_�̀\T\]Q�ab_�cdce��gec�̀hi?A�jJkED�HClIkD]�LjJkEDSHClIkD]NQmFendSoCKVwxA�yEFFETMIJz{CDT_�hkQ|k�LKTEFFETMIJFCDTN]IGEzoCTSCJTVp�BCDEFG�HCFGIJKEDLGMCFGIJKEDNOIFFIPCDQIRESTCUVp�sMErIJ_�s\]ED�L]]MErIJN]IGEzoCTSCJTVW~��XxZA�jIFFIPCDQI�sQJIIQ]oERI]�jkG�}IUkIv�jJkED_���JIUkIvIG�QMI�jkG�PJCK�QMI�ERREJIDQ�{Cv�OkGGIJ�����w��>�X�_�OIFCv�EJI�K̂�oCKKIDQ]�JITEJGkDT�QMIkJ�OkGS��D�QMI�]QEQIKIDQ�CP�jkGGIJ�]��\EFk�oE�CD]��\I]�CD]����MEUI�̂C\�IUIJ�PEkFIG�QC�oCKRFIQI�ED̂�vCJm�EvEJGIGQC�̂C\���P�]C_�vMIJI�EDG�vM̂���EDG�f��HEUI�̂C\�IUIJ�GIPE\FQIG�CD�E�oCDQJEoQ���P�]C�vMIJI�EDG�vM̂���EJIFk]QIG�E]���̀�vMID�kD�PEoQ_�QMÎ�EJI�ERRFkoEOFI�EDG�]MC\FG�OI�ED]vIJIGS[MI�vCJmPCJoI�DIIG]�QEOFI�ME]�DCDI��FFIG�kD�QMI�I]�KEQIG�D\KOIJ�CP�RJCtIoQ�MC\J]�EDG�DCQ�E�D\KIJkoEFUEF\IS��[MI�]Io�CD�e��CDQJEoQ�EDG�sCFkokQE�CD�EDG��CKKkQKIDQ�sQEQIKIDQ�ME]���̀�Fk]QIG�CD�QMI�PCJK�EDG�k]DCQ�oCKRFIQIG�oCJJIoQF̂S���EF]C�GkG�DCQ�]II�E��zf���MEUI�EF]C�JIUkIvIG�QMI�]IoCDG�FCv�ERREJIDQ�OkGGIJ�CP��?�Y����Z��X�w?Y�Z>~x ?Y�¡YxS�[MIkJ�OkG�k]�oCKRFIQIS���MEUI�EuEoMIG�GIOEJKIDQ�oMIom]�PJCK�OCQM��JK]�EDG�RJkDokRFI]�CP�QMI��JK]S��EoM��JK�k]�oFIEJIG_�KIEDkDTQMIK�EDG�QMIkJ�RJkDokRFI]�EJI�EOFI�QC�vCJm�CD�E�PIGIJEF�RJCtIoQS��P�̂C\�MEUI�ED̂��\I]�CD]_�RFIE]I�PIIF�PJII�QC�oCDQEoQ�KIS



����������	
���� �����������������������������

�����	������������������� � ����!"�#��$���%��&'()*+�)��#,-).)/��)�0(�12(�-).,/%3�&+�'*4�'-)��5�%�)6�
��"�78���9�:4�9�;< ���

�=>?@A�BCDE��FGHIJ�KLGMJNOPG�Q�R��5� ��!����1�  �!����S��T�������T����!S0���1��!�������&�T��! �!���2��;��!���+�$,�3��"��5��R���U��UV�W�V
U2W�
�(�((����#���U��
��V1W�V
U2W�(�����X
333���$���5���5�Q��� "����!5Y��$���5���5�Z[\]̂_̀ abcdefgehi�Zjklhi�[mlhlneop�q�Zjklhi�_lnndhejeop��



>
P
り
「
-
o
>
∃
O
之
>
こ
ウ
o
巾
力
士
「
○
○
>
「
南
面
o
刀
で
>
く
雪
面
之
十

P
>
G
町
O
Z
m
O
「
-
N
-
冒
玉
覆
面
S

十
〇
〇
ミ
Z
町
刀
‥
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
P
刀
O
」
巾
〇
十

調
0
「
O
J
g
J
o
お
堂
の
む
つ
(
の
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
G
O
<
〇
三
〇
十
S
P
a
「
k
B
a
s
①
b
a
二
[
i
①
一
d

N
∽
①
一
ミ
①
S
青
「
a
∃
b
S
〔
「
⑪
の
〔

脚
の
こ
の
事
o
つ
や
P
>
一
①
∞
お

菜
〇
三
〇
〇
之
「
刀
>
〇
十
〇
刀
‥
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
≦
>
>
刀
○
工
-
十
和
の
冒

し
○
ヨ
Z
a
s
鵡
s
⑪
○
○
⊃
S
菖
○
{
i
O
つ
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
享
の
b
の
「
M
こ
早
y
「
○
×
二
弄

P
0
口
0
×
一
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
室
の
S
O
u
手
≧
聖
S
置
「
①
の
(

S
⊃
o
W
S
プ
○
①
一
P
>
」
の
∞
‡
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
s
u
i
青
の
一
一
の

>
P
P
「
一
〇
>
十
一
〇
Z
弁

P
巾
刀
一
〇
〇
十
〇
‥

P
刀
O
」
叩
○
○
之
O
S
‥

口
j
s
喜
夢
こ
〔
動
○
コ
〔
○
‥

○
○
Z
「
刀
>
〇
十
口
>
十
和
‥
一
〇
、
心
ミ
心
N

∩
言
ミ
つ
の
「

O
山
号
S
〔
.
≡
g
「

>
」
立
夏
青
の
o
〔

n
o
∃
「
a
O
{
O
「

○
○
Z
」
刀
>
〇
十
[
○
刀
‥

S
〔
a
青
の
〇
〇
二
の
g
の
-
P
>
一
誌
〇
一

○
○
之
十
一
ま
あ
十
〇
刀
.
S
>
回
で
亡
の
>
∃
○
之
巾
○
刀
で
>
く
茎
和
之
「

>
p
p
-
i
罷
一
i
e
つ
i
s
∃
a
d
①
ぎ
p
a
雪
空
(
-
a
S
S
了
o
書
b
O
-
〇
三
二
コ
8
…
8
ぎ
⊃
≦
董
二
手
の
○
○
つ
〔
「
a
o
{
.

〇
〇
ま
つ
u
a
粛
○
つ
S
丁
の
①
二
s
a
寓
a
O
了
の
d
.

圭
の
…
d
〇
五
号
の
d
○
○
コ
{
宮
{
O
「
8
書
の
S
{
貢
{
o
手
の
b
e
s
{
○
…
①
○
○
コ
冨
尋
「
s
k
⊃
茎
の
d
g
ご
つ
さ
∋
藍
○
コ
a
コ
d

量
の
三
の
三
〇
〇
k
8
く
の
「
①
d
b
y
婁
s
吉
p
-
i
露
か
i
O
つ
{
○
○
P
a
盲
e
っ
手
a
s
b
①
の
つ
8
∃
p
-
①
青
の
d
i
コ
a
8
○
「
l
a
コ
o
同
≦
事
手
の

○
○
コ
急
豆
口
8
∪
∃
雪
{
s
.
手
a
{
2
=
2
ヨ
O
山
喜
プ
a
<
の
す
の
雪
P
a
i
d
b
y
手
の
○
○
⊃
{
「
a
o
{
〇
〇
千
〇
「
…
「
k
{
O
「
三
三
虫
I
P
至
i
O
U
S

O
宣
言
a
{
の
S
♂
「
P
a
三
重
三
高
「
①
i
s
s
J
の
d
a
⊃
言
a
盲
e
コ
{
s
「
の
8
i
く
の
J
ぎ
ヨ
手
の
0
書
面
「
.
a
つ
d
喜
一
O
J
i
e
コ
舌
a
盲
雪
〔

S
h
O
ミ
コ
辛
の
「
の
i
⊃
i
s
コ
〇
三
d
u
①
.

一
・
〇
空
の
≡
>
「
○
○
雪
空
轟
音
S
U
苧
,
,
〇
〇
・
,
〇
・
〇
・
〇
〇
〇
〇
〇
・
〇
・
l
○
○
-
　
∽

N
"
之
o
〔
o
J
a
⊃
g
の
す
y
O
J
a
つ
り
〇
〇
〇
d
○
○
S
-
・
〇
〇
〇
・
・
〇
〇
・
〇
〇
〇
〇
,
,
ふ
∴
∴
∽

〇
・
〇
〇
こ
「
刀
>
〇
十
S
U
書
○
○
ウ
>
「
面
(
「
芋
の
一
十
へ
,
N
)

ト
音
〇
十
>
「
○
○
重
り
「
調
書
南
口
か
S
十
〇
刀
南
口
十
〇
口
重
.
面
-
∽

(
〇
°
一
u
ヨ
⊃
G
O
つ
○
○
コ
(
i
…
a
き
つ
S
h
の
e
〔
)

∽
.
刀
調
音
>
-
之
>
o
巾
‥

a
・
　
　
　
〇
「
○
○
ヨ
p
一
①
青
の
d
ミ
O
「
k

割
引
割
引
ざ
s
ロ
十
巾
○
コ
○
○
⊃
置
き
a
{
i
O
⊃
S
ゴ
悪
〔
)

b
.
　
　
　
〇
十
S
青
○
○
の
d
三
a
青
の
ユ
a
-

匂
割
引
一
[
○
⊃
○
○
喜
…
a
〔
i
O
コ
S
プ
蓮
)

十
〇
〔
a
一
刀
の
青
a
i
コ
a
g
①
(
「
i
つ
の
撮
み
十
輩
○
○

∽∽

十
〇
【
a
二
つ
〇
〇
一
u
∃
⊃
一
〇
へ
○
○
つ
〔
i
…
a
〔
i
O
コ
S
つ
の
の
丁
・
I
-
・
・
　
∽

〇
・
十
〇
〇
>
「
面
>
カ
こ
南
口
「
巾
S
S
カ
和
漢
と
こ
>
の
巾
・
・
・
○
○
,
,
,
〇
〇
〇
　
　
∽

(
「
一
つ
の
主
の
S
S
エ
コ
の
蜘
十
〇
〔
a
一
)

「
「
巾
S
S
で
カ
細
く
ー
o
U
S
o
巾
刀
音
-
巾
○
○
」
雪
面
S
[
o
刀
で
>
く
雪
和
之
「

(
「
i
つ
の
①
ゴ
d
∃
P
「
i
O
「
O
⑪
ユ
弐
密
輸
の
)
・
-
i
i
-
!
-
〃
-
-
-
・
i
-
I
I
・
　
∽

∞
・
o
U
刀
刀
細
雪
P
>
く
雪
聖
書
ロ
U
面
・
・
〇
〇
〇
〇
〇
・
・
・
・
〇
-
〇
〇
・
雪
〇
・
-
,
,
,
　
∽

?
P
>
「
>
之
○
巾
十
〇
王
室
S
エ
葛
≡
○
○
U
ロ
ー
N
o
刀
調
書
と
之
>
o
巾

(「i⊃のどのSSエコの①)　　　　　　　　　∽

窒
心
-
の
蛍
.
∽
e

寸
ぺ
T
①
∽
T
①
e

①
♪
∽
∞
?
①
e

之
O
〔
a
く
り
u
b
三
〇
‥
　
」
a
u
つ
磐
の
三
二
三
a
{
i
s

粥

開

聞

開

聞

-
つ
a
§
「
d
a
⊃
8
ミ
事
○
○
つ
{
「
a
9
ロ
董
ヨ
呈
s
.
b
a
s
e
d
O
⊃
〇
千
S
-
{
○
○
b
s
帥
a
き
つ
S
a
⊃
d
蓋
d
a
鵡
8
∃
p
当
S
-
つ
り

a
量
の
a
{
i
O
つ
三
の
>
「
〔
葦
8
{
8
曇
の
s
一
〇
季
e
O
≦
∃
o
「
蓋
{
{
e
手
の
b
①
S
{
○
…
の
亨
∩
蔓
の
象
に
コ
○
言
d
g
e
一
i
コ
♂
ヨ
a
き
つ

a
⊃
d
b
の
毒
手
e
ミ
○
貢
丁
a
s
p
○
○
g
「
①
S
S
⑪
d
a
s
i
⊃
d
i
o
a
{
早
手
の
q
U
a
一
i
マ
O
f
手
e
三
〇
三
s
i
吉
富
「
d
a
コ
8
童
挙
手
の

〇
〇
号
a
o
{
口
象
山
ヨ
空
母
a
っ
d
手
①
○
○
⊃
冨
尋
二
s
雪
雲
邑
{
O
P
a
モ
黒
岩
{
〇
三
一
〇
>
三
〇
U
至
〇
第
±
[
一
山
□
.

>
茎
O
U
之
」
○
巾
力
士
[
"
南
口
・
-
-
I
・
~
i
-
-
-
-
i
・
・
・
・
-
-
-
・
・
○
○
・
・
~
-
・
∽

a
言
霊
撃
a
。
d
§
t
h
①
○
○
n
ぎ
a
雪
S
h
$
t
蓋
~
a
あ
・
h
a
コ
g
e
d
ざ
8
き
m
奇
書
a
害
u
n
㌃
婁
「
-
①
d
)

S
蕾
罫
の
さ
す
n
a
ぎ
コ
ネ
a
ヨ
e
u
n
t
C
e
「
茎
e
d
会
津
高
ま
m
き
o

a
ミ
o
u
n
t
蔦
で
宗
d
洋
三
.
ミ
ミ
漬
、
a
ミ
遠
ミ
d
S
き
n
き
み

>
刀
〇
三
十
和
〇
十

ロ
y
‥

口
a
〔
①
‥

ヨ
i
s
○
○
曇
O
a
{
の
i
s
コ
〇
三
の
g
O
{
i
a
b
-
e
・
享
の
≧
O
U
看
O
男
≒
-
芭
!
s
p
a
盲
b
一
〇
〇
コ
ー
y
{
○
手
の
○
○
つ
富
江
〇
三
a
ヨ
①
d

丁
の
「
の
i
つ
・
-
s
s
u
a
⊃
8
・
P
a
モ
墨
{
a
⊃
言
霊
p
{
a
つ
8
0
f
p
a
当
意
当
{
a
「
e
喜
丁
e
J
{
p
「
曾
d
-
8
{
O
a
つ
y
忠
言
敬
三
の
○
≦
∋
ゐ
「

O
f
○
○
コ
{
「
a
O
(
○
○
u
コ
d
○
○
婁
s
○
○
コ
(
「
a
争



∽ �揃墜おおさ∴きる登竜まま云おお二言①∞車のひものN一 　°¶“P �亭雪 ��> ⊂ ロブ 一書 害 「 ∽ 蓋 「n N �繭量繭量害毒 　　-1 　窃∴∴∴∴ヨ �景 o = 言 o つ ま 害 え ��葛刀 

講書 
宣‡害冨 雪　の 
回　　　　　　の 

eう 望 N 登 も「 ⊂⊃ �七〇ちら　∽∽⇔∽∽∽∽∽⇔∽⇔⇔∽∽∽∽∽∽∽⇔ 　　　　　　　　○○し �く∩ 春若 君圭 の 〇〇 ��(⊃ 

ま」ゝ∴ぐ)さ∞掌浅さ志お窪巷窪ま慈お金お里さまミ 善書撞き詩誌議書雪盲詫詩誌雪詫 望888きききき雪害暮雪害888888888 　　　　●●●.●←"● 

七〇 (二〇 〇ふ ∞ ∞ ∞ N ⊂) ⊂) �七〇　　七〇　七〇　七〇　七〇　匂う七〇　も〇七〇　eう七〇 �。面 轟 くの �ミ o 貢 ○ ○ ∋ 2〇 番 〇〇 �⊂7 
勺ウ七〇やウめろう「諭一七〇七〇七〇匂う _▲ 

♪平手や学ぶ三軍挙等毒草毒箪軍事葦毒草毒手 嘗至華軍書富害昌雪害誓書書書…書富書巻書冨 888888888きき書ききき雪害きききき 

くら N ∽ 患 ○○ ⊂) �匂う　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　⇔ �重 く∩ .“〇 〇 。「 ��m 

_」" ∽　　　　　　　　　　　　「 

嵩　　　　　　　　嘗 

望　　　　　　　　　　　　8 �〇 〇〇 

やら i � �轟害 ��“丁l 

亀e 箪 N くノ○ 掌 くれ ⊂) �∽⇔⇔∽⇔∽∽∽∽∽∽∽⇔⇔∽∽∽∽∽∽⇔∽∽傷口∽ 　　　　　　_▲ 　おや“くめき∞縫浅さ志獄霊g聖霊恕お盆おきさまこ 　く°のo)ひ)の○○⊂〕⊂〕 �轟富 ��G) 

焉8　お堂さ88○○88昌8888888霊88 --・・・,...P〔⊃PPPPPP〇〇〇〇〇〇〇 　g8　8888888888888害昌8暮雪昌8 

〇〇〇 ⊂⊃ ⊂⊃ e さミ �一ふ-ふ-ふ一ふ-ふ-ふ一一一-ふ一一一一一i-ふ葛ゝ-ふ“ふ一一一 8888888888888888888888 畏畏蓑畏蓑蓑蓑蓑畏寒雲雲量畏蓑寒雲寒雲畏雲量 �lii""iヽ 焉零 

七〇 i �　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　〇 七〇∽匂う七〇七〇∴∴∴七〇七〇〇うちeくら �轟 ��工 ⇔⇔⇔のめの∽e亨七〇や〇七〇七〇七〇七〇∽ ilIII-I,一一〃I'I一一一一一'illiI 

七〇 II �匂う　匂う　もら　⇔　やら　　七〇　七〇　七〇　七〇　七〇∴七〇 �刀 ♀ お つ き) Q e �� 匂う⇔七〇七〇七〇やう七〇∽切やウ∽⇔匂う七〇 iliI--1-I,,-------IIIIIl 

○
○
之
±
之
U
>
±
o
之
S
工
面
和
漢

>
「
「
>
○
工
≡
巾
之
十
十
〇

P
>
く
>
P
P
「
○
○
>
±
O
之

①
N
〇
十
∴
∴
∴
N

P
刀
O
」
巾
〇
十

〇
〇
<
〇
三
〇
「
一
s
P
a
「
k
田
a
s
①
b
a
ニ
「
i
①
一
d

>
P
P
ェ
○
>
コ
O
之
Z
U
三
田
面
刀
‥

>
P
『
「
一
〇
>
±
O
之
口
>
「
m
‥

P
男
一
〇
ウ
十
〇
‥
∞
」
竺
お
e
N
∽

完
○
工
〇
十
巾
〇
十
S
P
を
0
」
南
の
三
〇
‥
N
罵
心
.
e
志
.
8



�����������	���
� ������
�����������������������

�����	������������������������ !�"�#�

$�
%&'()*�(��"+,(-(.��(�/'�01'�,(-+.$2�%*&)3�&,(��4
$
3536"����30�.+77� 7+�58 ���

9:;�<=>?@�AB>>CDEF�G@BH?I>JKLMNO�PKNOQRSML�TOUKNOQRSMLVWQNNQXKLYQZM[\K]̂_QO�̀abcadedf�bbgè�hijKghNkllM�JKUQRYk�TMOKUQRYkVWQNNQXKLYQZM[\K]̂mngoMNZU�pYQqMRY�TRlYQqMRYVWQNNQXKLYQZM[\K]̂b�MYYMnUSQLYl�rs�ituvwLMN�oQZKRY�tw\�pZRwL\�qMYQRx[OKnyz{|�}~��������~������|��~������|�����|~����������������������������|~����������}~���|��~���������������������������������������|������������������~�����{�~������}��|�����������������������~~��������������� ¡¢£¤¤¢ ¤¥ ��¦����|���� ¤§̈©ª«���~~��|��¬�~����®|¦��¥̄ �������°±²³́«����������¬�}������ µ¬��¥�£� ¥�¡£�}�¶©«�����~��{�~�������®���~������̄ ��~~������������°±·̧¹²º́«����������~|������»����{|����¼��������������������|~~|�����������¦�~�����������������~|������»�������������������������������������������¥ �¬���|��������~�����������|���������������������������|�������|����~���¬��½¾�¡£¥�¿�|��������~�����������~���À����|��|�����¢��������������������Á�����¬��|�|~��������������������������~������������������|�������|�������Â������������¬�����������|~~��¦�~�����������������������|��������|���������������������¬������|~~����|����������~���~�������������|�|��������»����������|�������|����~��������������~~������|���������~~��|���ÃÄÅÆÇÈÅ�ÉÊÉËÄÅÌÅ�ÍÎ�ÏÉÆÇÐ�ÑÍÒËÌÊÓ�ÍÔÇÐÉÕÍÊÖ�×ØÌÅ�ÙÍÚËÛ�ÌÊÙËÚÛÇ�ÉÊ�ÜÝÞ�ßÜÌÎÇ�ÝÄÙËÇ�ÞÅÅÇÅÅÈÇÊÆà�ÙÍÈÔÉÐÌÊÓÉËÆÇÐÊÉÕáÇ�ÈÉÆÇÐÌÉËÅ�ÎÍÐ�ÑÍÒËÇÅ�ßÓËÉÅÅ�áÅÖ�ÔÇÆÐÍâÔËÉÅÕÙÅ�áÅÖ�ÔËÉÊÆâÑÉÅÇÛ�ÔËÉÅÕÙÅàã�ÙÍÈÔÉÐÌÊÓ�ÛÌÅÆÐÌÑÚÕÍÊÉÔÔÐÍÉÙØÇÅ�ßÌÊÆÇÐÊÉË�ÑÍÒËÌÊÓä�ÙÚÅÆÍÈÇÐ�åËËÌÊÓä�ÐÇÅÌÛÇÊÕÉË�ÛÇËÌáÇÐÄä�ÇÆÙÖàã�ÇÊÇÐÓÄ�ÉÊÉËÄÅÌÅ�ÍÎ�É�ÑÍÒËÌÊÓ�ÎÉÙÌËÌÆÄÖæÇÓÉÐÛËÇÅÅ�ÍÎ�ÏØÌÙØ�ÉÊÉËÄÅÌÅ�ÌÅ�ÔÚÐÅÚÇÛä�ÆØÇ�ÅÆÚÛÇÊÆ�ÆÇÉÈ�ÏÍÚËÛ�ÛÇáÇËÍÔ�É�ÎÚÊÙÕÍÊÌÊÓ�ÈÍÛÇË�ÆØÉÆ�ÏÍÚËÛÉËËÍÏ�ÆØÇ�ÙËÌÇÊÆ�ÆÍ�ËÍÍç�ÉÆ�ÆØÇ�ÇèÇÙÆÅ�ÍÎ�ÙØÉÊÓÌÊÓ�ÌÊÔÚÆÅÖ����é����|������������������|~~���Á�|�����~�������������������|�����|��|������������������|���������������¦�~���������~~������������ê�����~����~|ë��|�������������������������Â������������|�����������������������~��������������|������������������»����������|���|����������������������¢���|�����������������������������¬|�������~��������ì������|������������~������~��|����������������í~�����~�����������|��������������|����~�Á���������é~~�~����������������|~�������������|���������~~���������~|���������|~~������|�����������������



�����������	���
� ������
�����������������������

�����	������������������������ !�"�#�

$�
%&'()*�(��"+,(-(.��(�/'�01'�,(-+.$2�%*&)3�&,(��4
$
3536"����30�.+77� 7+�58 ���

9:;<=>?@AB�CB??DEFGHIJKK�LMNMJ�OKPQJRSPMT�IJKK�LMNMJ�LUSMNPKNVPWPMTLUSMNPKNVWJ�XYZZUKP[JS�XYWWNVYRN[QJ�IRY\RNZ�]PRĴMYR_̀_�a�b=<c�d�e=fgh�igjg=hkl�amn:cn<op<nqghjnfr�s=htu�sv�_wx̀yzx_{|�xw}~yy�_�z;|zx_{|�}��~ẁ`̀�zk|


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 08212023
	WORK SESSION--Bellefonte Borough Climate Action Plan Document Memo
	WORK SESSION--Stage at Talleyrand, Proposed Lease and Supporting Exhibits
	20230818101113393
	20230818093119561

	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 08212023
	COMMUNICATIONS--Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority July and August Municipal Report 2023
	COMMUNICATIONS--Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority July Municipal Report 2023
	LIAISON REPORT. Centre County Recyling August Municipal Report 2023

	COMMUNICATIONS--Green Team Tree Brochure Rev. 12-2022
	COMMUNICATIONS--Request for Traffic-flow Improvements on W Bishop and South Spring Streets
	COMMUNICATIONS--Climate Action Plan_Borough Council Aug 17 2023
	COMMUNICATIONS--memo to Borough Council on the CAP
	COMMUNICATIONS--Resident not in favor of Climate Action Plan
	COMMUNICATIONS--Resident support for the BB Climate Action Plan and EAB
	COMMUNICATIONS--Resident support for the BB Climate Action Plan with supporting information
	COMMUNICATIONS--Resident support for the Bellefonte Borough Climate Action Plan
	COMMUNICATIONS--SCWC 2024 Budget and Meeting dates
	20230815081729875
	SCWC - Municipal Meeting Schedules

	COMMUNICATIONS--West Penn Powers repsonse to Nathanial & Maria Day's ROW Request to vacate
	COMMUNICATIONS--invitation to help support Harrisburg poet's workshops for Bellefonte youth
	COMMUNICATIONS--Safe Routes to Parks Bellefonte  Borough Update
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes August 7, 2023
	Council Meeting Minutes.08072023.DRAFT
	August 7, 2023

	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual July 2023
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary July 2023
	CONSENT--Stover McGlaughlin Invoice July 2023
	CONSENT--Treasurer's Report July 2023
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary July 2023
	REPORTS. MAYOR-Proclamation-Bellefonte Boy's Baseball Team State Champions August 21, 2023
	REPORTS. POLICE--July 2023 Report
	Chief's Report Front Page Editable
	Chief's report FILLABLE (1)  july

	REPORTS. POLICE--Parking Enforcement and Animal Control July 2023
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 8.21.2023 and supporting documents
	OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 8.21.2023
	OCA--HARB Meeting Agenda 8.8.2023
	OCA--HARB Minutes 8-8-23--DRAFT
	OCA--HARB Presentation.8.8.2023
	BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE�HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10

	OCA--LEGAL NOTICE - 1304 Summit Drive
	OCA--ZHB agenda 8.29.23 - 1304 Summit Drive

	REPORTS. BOROUGH MANAGER--July 2023 Report
	REPORTS. BOROUGH MANAGER--July 2023 Report
	REPORTS.SEWER--Superintendent’s Report June 2023
	REPORTS.WATER--Superintendent’s Report June 2023
	REPORTS.SEWER--Superintendent’s Report July 2023
	REPORTS.WATER--Superintendent’s Report July 2023

	REPORTS. ASSIST BOROUGH MANAGER-July 2023 Report
	LIAISON REPORT. EMS Municipal Update - 2nd quarter 2023
	LIAISON REPORT. Bellefonte Environmental Advisory Review Board Meetings notes July 2023
	I. Only one meeting held
	A. The July 26, 2023 EAB meeting was cancelled due to multiple conflicts

	II. Climate Action Plan Accomplishments
	A. We are going through our notes since September 2020 when the Climate Action Plan was passed to compile a list of all of the sustainability accomplishments that have be achieved by the borough community and government.
	B. Where appropriate, we are also listing the collaborators in each of these projects

	III. Web and media Sustainability design options from 2022 Sustainability Project
	A. The review of these options was postponed because Ilona Ballreich had a last-minute mandatory meeting at PSU.  This will be put back on the table at a later date.

	IV. Other programs being planned
	A. Climate Action Plan Presentation to the Public
	1. This was the most educational program requested by the Sustainability Survey Respondents.
	2. DBI has tentatively agreed to allow us to use the Springboard site for this presentation on Saturday, September 16 from 10:00 to 11:30 am. (Aside note: Kathleen Ammon has been hired as the new Executive Director of DBI. She started on July 24).
	3. We are checking with DBI to see if this presentation can be done as a hybrid in person and on Zoom. If we can, then we will record it on Zoom so that we can also post it to the website.
	4. Don is updating our prior PowerPoint presentations using the data created on the accomplishments that have occurred since passage of the CAP in 2020. This revision will be used for this presentation.

	B. Community Composting at Musser Lane – Don said that this public event tentatively scheduled for Saturday, October 7 at 10 am.  He believes that the bags will have arrived and the staff will have had time to train using the new bagging operation by ...
	C. Stormwater Mitigation – No update due to Ilona Ballreich not being able to attend this meeting.  At the June meeting, Ilona said she is waiting to hear back from Matt Royer, the professor who has agreed to do the program.  We might also do a stormw...
	D. Pollinator Education program – Gay Dunne contacted the Ford’s to see if they or someone with expertise in creating and maintain pollinating habitats can do an educational program for us.

	V. PMS Sustainability Designation
	A. We received an email from the Pennsylvania Municipal League. They are one of the two partners that oversee the Sustainable PA program.  The other partner is Sustainable Pittsburgh regarding social equity.  This item has been placed the EAB for futu...

	VI. Next meetings
	A. August 9
	B. August 23
	C. September 13


	LIAISION REPORT. Authority Meeting Minutes.08152023.DRAFT
	LIAISON REPORT. CCLHM Minutes 05.25.23
	LIAISON REPORT. Workplace Safety Committee August 2023
	Agenda.08092023 on letterhead
	Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.07122023

	OLD BUSINESS--Memo from Finance Director pertaining to JUNE 2023 Budget vs Actual Summary report
	OLD BUSINESS--Budget v. Actual Summary June 2023
	OLD BUSINESS--Coalition Against Bigger Trucks
	OLD BUSINESS--Coalition Against Bigger Trucks
	H.R. 2948 - CARS Act
	H.R. 3372

	OLD BUSINESS--DBI Bellefonte Under the Lights, Block Party request
	DBI 2023 Under the Lights Permit Application
	DBI 2023 Under the Lights Block Party Event Request - Borough Council
	Under the Lights Block Party 2023 Event Map v2 (2)

	OLD BUSINESS--Bellefonte Borough Special Events Calendar August-October 2023
	August 2023
	September 2023
	October 2023

	OLD BUSINESS--South Spring Street Streetscape Bids Review Email string with Solicitor
	OLD BUSINESS--Nastase Construction Final Invoice for Governors Park Baseball Field
	NEW BUSINESS--Water Bottling project

	CALLS: 537
	SUPPLEMENTS: 41
	ASSISTS: 6
	CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS: 7
	NON-TRAFFIC: 7
	PARKING TICKETS: 15
	ACCIDENT REPORTS: 10
	WARRANTS ATTEMPTED: 9
	WARRANTS SERVED: 7
	302: 2
	PERSON STOP: 4
	CAR 1: 140
	CAR 2: 122**
	CAR 3: 170
	CAR 4: 200
	CAR 5: 189
	CAR 6: 245
	CAR 7: 270
	CAR 8: 78
	BUSINESS CHECKS: 23
	VACATION HOME CHECKS: 5
	STOPS: 64
	WARNINGS: 59
	CITES: 5
	VEHICLE: 987
	FOOT: 116.5
	FOCUSED: 55
	3400 SCHEDULED: 172
	3400 PTO: 28
	3400 OT: 7
	3400 MEETINGS: 24
	3400 TRAINING: 
	3400 TOTAL: 151
	3407 SCHEDULED: 176
	3407 PTO: 40
	3407 OT: 
	3407 MEETINGS: 17
	3407 TRAINING: 16
	3407 TOTAL: 120
	3408 SCHEDULED: 200
	3408 PTO: 14
	3408 OT: 4
	3408 MEETINGS: 
	3408 TRAINING: 
	3408 TOTAL: 190
	3410 SCHEDULED: 180
	3410 PTO: 25
	3410 OT: 
	3410 MEETINGS: 
	3410 TRAINING: 
	3410 TOTAL: 155
	3411 SCHEDULED: 180
	3411 PTO: 30
	3411 OT: 
	3411 MEETINGS: 
	3411 TRAINING: 
	3411 TOTAL: 150
	3412 SCHEDULED: 160
	3412 PTO: 50
	3412 OT: 3
	3412 MEETINGS: 
	3412 TRAINING: 
	3412 TOTAL: 113
	3416 SCHEDULED: 180
	3416 PTO: 10
	3416 OT: 
	3416 MEETINGS: 
	3416 TRAINING: 38
	3416 TOTAL: 132
	3417 SCHEDULED: 190
	3417 PTO: 40
	3417 OT: 5
	3417 MEETINGS: 
	3417 TRAINING: 
	3417 TOTAL: 155
	3421 SCHEDULED: 170
	3421 PTO: 
	3421 OT: 10
	3421 MEETINGS: 
	3421 TRAINING: 
	3421 TOTAL: 180
	3424 SCHEDULED: 180
	3424 PTO: 40
	3424 OT: 3.5
	3424 MEETINGS: 
	3424 TRAINING: 
	3424 TOTAL: 143.5
	3400 CALLS: 26
	3400 AVAILABLE: 151
	3400 FOOT: 10
	3400 PATROL: 100
	3400 ADMIN: 41
	3407 CALLS: 10
	3407 AVALIABLE: 120
	3407 FOOT: 4
	3407 PATROL: 30
	3407 ADMIN: 90
	3408 CALLS: 72
	3408 AVAILABLE: 190
	3408 FOOT: 18
	3408 PATROL: 20
	3408 ADMIN: 170**
	3410 CALLS: 67
	3410 AVALABLE: 155
	3410 FOOT: 10.5
	3410 PATROL: 140
	3410 ADMIN: 15
	3411 CALLS: 47
	3411 AVALIABLE: 150
	3411 FOOT: 9
	3411 PATROL: 130
	3411 ADMIN: 20
	3412 CALLS: 33
	3412 AVAILABLE: 113
	3412 FOOT: 13.5
	3412 PATROL: 90
	3412 ADMIN: 23
	3416 CALLS: 48
	3416 AVAILABLE: 132
	3416 FOOT: 13.5
	3416 PATROL: 100
	3416 ADMIN: 32
	3417 CALLS: 103
	3417 AVAILABLE: 155
	3417 FOOT: 12
	3417 PATROL: 135
	3417 ADMIN: 20
	3421 CALLS: 42
	3421 AVAILABLE: 190
	3421 FOOT: 9
	3421 PATROL: 180
	3421 ADMIN: 10
	3424 CALLS: 56
	3424 AVAILABLE: 143.5
	3424 FOOT: 16.5
	3424 PATROL: 120
	3424 ADMIN: 23.5
	3400 COURT: 
	3400 SHIFT: 7
	3400 HELD: 
	3400 CALLED: 
	3400T: 
	3400RA: 
	TOTAL3400 WEAVER: 7
	3407 COURT: 
	3407 SHIFT: 
	3407 HELD: 
	3407 CALLED: 
	3407T: 
	3407RA: 
	TOTAL3407 WITMER: 
	3408 COURT: 4
	3408 SHIFT: 
	3408 HELD: 
	3408 CALLED: 
	3408T: 
	3408RA: 
	TOTAL3408 NEIDEIGH: 4
	3410 COURT: 
	3410 SHIFT: 
	3410 HELD: 
	3410 CALLED: 
	3410T: 
	3410RA: 
	TOTAL3410 LYONS: 
	3411 COURT: 
	3411 SHIFT: 
	3411 HELD: 
	3411 CALLED: 
	3411T: 
	3411RA: 
	TOTAL3411 WALTER: 
	3412 COURT: 3
	3412 SHIFT: 
	3412 HELD: 
	3412 CALLED: 
	3412T: 
	3412RA: 
	TOTAL3412 BROWER: 3
	3416 COURT: 3
	3416 SHIFT: 
	3416 HELD: 2
	3416 CALLED: 
	3416T: 
	3416RA: 
	TOTAL3416 LUSE: 5
	3417 COURT: 
	3417 SHIFT: 
	3417 HELD: 
	3417 CALLED: 
	3417T: 
	3417RA: 
	TOTAL3417 IGOE: 
	3421 COURT: 
	3421 SHIFT: 10
	3421 HELD: 
	3421 CALLED: 
	3421T: 
	3421RA: 
	TOTAL3421 HOLT: 
	3424 COURT: 3.5
	3424 SHIFT: 
	3424 HELD: 
	3424 CALLED: 
	3424T: 
	3424RA: 
	TOTAL3424 POLLOCK: 3.5


